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Job number: 1 8056 

D Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
To provide an appropriation to the North Dakota Department of Transportation (DOT) for 
grants to counties and townships for improvements to scenic roadways and roadways 
providing access to recreational areas. 

Minutes: 

Chairman Oehlke Opened the hearing on SB 2221 . 

Senator Robert Erbele, District 28, in favor This bill requests a twenty million dollars 
appropriation from the Strategic Investment and Improvement Fund. 
He provided a little history on the fund and background on how projects of this type are 
currently funded. See attached testimony #1.  This bill will provide tax relief and help local 
subdivisions fund these projects. He handed out Senator's Larry Robinson's written 
testimony, in support of this bill, including a copy of the Special Road Fund Study­
Background Memorandum listing projects this fund has supported. See attached testimony 

#2. Senator Robinson was not able to attend the hearing. 

In response to Senator Flakoll's question regarding who are the members of the Special 
Road Committee mentioned in page 1 lines 1 6- 1 7, Chairman Oehlke handed out 
testimony #3. 

Senator Carlisle, District 30, there is a bill similar to this in Appropriations and I think this 
bill is the vehicle. 

Bill Butcher, Friends of Lake Sakakawea, an organization representing boaters, 
f ishermen, cabin owners, sailors, businesses, communities and everyone who appreciates 
this resource. See written testimony #4 in favor of this bill. In response to a question from 
Senator Flakoll regarding amount of money in his "wish list" he said more than twenty 
million dollars. Senator Campbell wanted to know how much money they have received 
from this fund so far, to which he answered that right now there is no fund. The only money 
available is the Special Road Fund interest from federal moneys received in transportation 
with a one hundred twenty five thousand dollars limit. It costs nearly a million dollars a mile 
to pave a road, so it makes no sense to even apply. The problem is that many of the paved 
roads that go near recreational areas are good, but the last two to six miles are terrible. We 
got an increase in population that needs access roads. 
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Handed out written testimony #5 from Clarence Weltz, former Mountrail County 
Commissioner, summarizing his d iscussion of this bill with, current Mountrail County 
Commissioners, Greg Boschee and David Hynek. All of them favor of this b ill. 

Randy Hatzenbuhler, President Theodore Roosevelt Medora Foundations in support of 
b ill; written testimony #6 

Tom Jochim, Chairman, Voices for Lake Oahe, Emmons County, North Dakota in support 
of this b ill. See written testimony #7, highlighting the benefits of road improvement. 

Bill Mitzel, publisher Dakota County Magazine, a monthly hunting, fishing and 
conservation magazine. Stressing the effect of good roads on tourism. Attached written 
testimony #8 supporting this b ill. 

Kelly Sorge, owner Indian Hills Resort, Garrison North Dakota. Written testimony #9 in 
favor of this b ill. She explained the effect of a primitive county road full of washboards and 
loose rocks not only on campers and boats but on businesses. 

Emmanuel Stroh: Member Friends of Lake Sakakawea, Dunn County Director for Friends 
of Lake Sakakawea, Vice-President of McKenzie Bay Marine Club .  Written testimony# 9 
stating that much of the road funds in that area are going to roads impacted by high oil 
traffic and how this bill will allow additional funding for improvement to roads that lead to 
many recreational spots statewide. 

Chairman Oehlke remarked to Mr. Butcher and Ms. Sorge that upgrading roads into some 
of the residential areas are improvements that increase property values and thus property 
taxes. He asked if these people are prepared for the increase in property taxes. Mr. 
Butcher said he can't speak of property values and Ms. Sorge said the increase will be 
better for her in the long run. Chairman Oehlke remarked that usually everybody likes the 
increase in property values but two years down the road they come back asking for 
property tax relief to which neither responded. 

Senator Flakoll asked Ms. Sorge and Mr. Stroh what the local mil for roads in their area is. 
They did not know. 

Bill Shaloob Representing ND Chamber of Commerce and the Tourism Alliance 
Partnership, both organizations favor this bill. One of our initiatives in TAP has been 
infrastructure development within North Dakota to help tourism. The governor had a small 
grant program in his last budget and a larger one this time. Tourism is not only the larger 
communities, it is the hunting and fishing and all the other recreational opportunities within 
the state while those infrastructure grants deal with the actual building of a thing for people 
to go to see we still have to get people there to see it so roads are an important part of the 
process we are trying to create the forward thinking that will be necessary when we don't 
have as much oil activity as we do and we will have things in place to continue our 
prosperity in the form of more recreational opportunities for people out of state and create 
business opportunities. 
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No additional testimony in favor. No testimony in opposition. No neutral testimony. Hearing 
closed . 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
To provide an appropriation to the North Dakota Department of Transportation (DOT} for 
grants to counties and townships from improvements to scenic roadways and roadways 
providing access to recreational areas. 

Minutes: Attached testimony 1 

Chairman Oehlke opened the d iscussion on SB 2221. 

Senator Flakoll: I was thinking about two individual amendments. In the first one we 
looked at breaking up the dollars, d ivide the state in eight regions and say that those funds 
will be dispersed within those eight regions as nearly equal as practicable so that it is not 
just one big project but a number of projects that can be done across the state so that there 
isn't this feeling of being left out as it were. The second amendment relates to the county 
mil rates so that they have at least certain amount of local effort and won't be sailing along 
with just either no mils or quarter mils and then expect the state to come in and do it for 
them. 

Chairman Oehlke I think it was two sessions ago that increased the dollar amount that 
went to oil related counties for road work. We passed legislation that gave them more of the 
oil production tax but we required that they at least put ten mils into that county road fund 
from each county. Until about five years ago some counties in the oil producing area d id not 
have to spend any of their county money on road work; they were getting plenty of oil 
money to handle all the road activity. It wasn't until recently that it got out of hand. So if the 
counties want some of this work they should be stepping up to the plate too. 

Senator Campbell That is in addition to the 20% they have to put? 

Chairman Oehlke The wording is that they may require up to 20% no that they shall 

Senator Sinner Eight regions are equal regions based on population? 

Senator Flakoll Established in the late seventies, they are geographic areas. 

Senator Sitte I don't like the regional idea. We have a committee in place and I like the 
grouping. Let's say there is nothing needed in the larger areas; why should they be forced 
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to put money in there when right now all the demands in recreation, for access,  are in the 
west but in five years it might be in the east. It is only twenty million dollars I don't think this 
is a huge amount of money and would not want to tie the hands of this committee 

Senator Flakoll The committee is already suspicious to me, regardless of who is put on 
there, they are going to represent certain people or areas and it raises flags immediately by 
identifying them. There is leadership, members of individual organization, or whatever, that 
just naturally raises flags in that they don't have a set metrics of scoring in the bill, or 
otherwise. You are just leaving yourself open to people saying; so and so is voting for, 
because they live in this or that area. 

Senator Sitte Let us review it: one senator, one member of the house, the director of 

game and fish, the director of parks and recreation and the director of the department of 
transportation. I consider those five people an adequate committee to determine who gets 
what. 

Senator Sinner Were you suggesting that the money be divided equally between these 
eight regions? 

Senator Flakoll As equal as generally practicable, divided by regional areas. There are 
lots of groups that would be on the list that aren't on the table. Game and fish put money for 
people who have expensive boats and RVs but what are we doing for the park at this place 
or other things like that it is a situation fraught with suspicion. 

Senator Campbell I agree with Senator Flakoll. To me it is a huge equity deal; it gives me 
relief that it is a fair deal. 

Senator Sinner I agree with Senator Sitte I look back at what happened with the water 
commission and the water distribution funds back in 1 980s they were dividing the money 
equally between the eight regions of the state and were just gradually finishing these little 
projects all the way along. About the mid-80s they got together with the water commission 
and a couple other parties and said we need to fix a few problems. The first thing they did 
was the diversion around West Fargo. It saved West Fargo; they put all the money in one 
year in just one project because it was so needed. In this case we have very similar 
situations; we can have people apply. These people are employees; they will make an 
honest decision on where this money goes. I agree with Senator Sitte 

Vice Chairman Armstrong I agree with both of them. I would request that the work 
"equally" be changed to "equitably". That if we are only appropriating 20 million dollars, it's 
a lot of money, but when you divide it among eight people that might not be enough for any 
particular one project. If there is a big group of people who think there are twenty million 
dollars going out to the west. Some language is needed to give guidance to the committee 
saying this needs to be spread appropriately across the state is a good idea 

Senator Flakoll Just the power of the chairman of legislative management, who appoints 
the members, there will be a lot of people scrapping for that one It will be hotly d iscussed 
that one person gets to pick without advice and consent of anybody. We hear a lot of 
complaining about the interim committee where the budget section and others allocate 
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funds for a small group that, for some people go outside of the normal budgeting process. 
worry that this is even more egregious for those who have concerns about the math. 

Senator Sitte We learned last session. We heard from North Dakota Department of 
Transportation (DOT) that the roads in the eastern part of the state were built on much 
higher standard than the roads anywhere else to accommodate the sugar beet and potato 
growers. That happened years ago and if all the roads in the state would have gone to that 
quality we would not have the problems in the west that we are having now. At the time, the 
state responded to a very real need but that is what the legislature does we look out for the 
entire state not our own little turf or region and when we get into that mode then everybody 
loses. 

Senator Flakoll That is a flawed argument because what I am proposing is about having 
some across the entire state and the spirit of equity. I don't know what the breakout was at 
that time. 

Chairman Oehlke Have the amendments ready for tomorrow so we can vote on this b ill. 

Meeting adjourned. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
To provide an appropriation to the North Dakota Department of Transportation (DOT) for 
grants to counties and townships from improvements to scenic roadways and roadways 
providing access to recreational areas. 

Minutes: Attached testimony: 3 

Chairman Oehlke opened the d iscussion on SB 2221 .  

Senator Flakoll Moved to adopt amendment 1 3.0662.02001 , regarding mils. Explained 
this will ensure counties and townships make an effort on their own. Testimony #1 

Vice Chairman Armstrong Second 

Discussion: 

Senator Axness Do you know of any counties exempt from this, and levied less than 7 
mils? 

Senator Flakoll Some will be. 

No further d iscussion. Voice vote on amendment 1 3.0662.02001 7 in favor 0 against 0 
absent not voting 

Senator Flakoll Moved to adopt amendment 1 3.0662.02002 regarding the regionalization, 
to ensure significant needs all across the state are met. Testimony #2 

Vice Chairman Armstrong second 

No d iscussion. Voice vote 5 yes 2 no 0 absent not voting 

Senator Flakoll Proposed a third amendment regarding the special road committee under 
Section 3 Section 24-02-37.2. Looking for a broader spectrum of involvement the proposed 
amendment before you provides additional legislative involvement that would be broader 
based. Instead of a minority of members being elected officials representing the legislative 
branch, it would include five legislators and three agency heads or their designees. It would 
take five votes to pass something. It goes from two members appointed by the chairman of 
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legislative council to one member appointed by that individual and it would include the 
chairmen of the Senate and House Transportation committees, the Senate and House 
minority leaders; so it has both the majority and minority party representatives. This would 
probably provide for a better process. Moved to adopt the amendment. Testimony #3 

Vice Chairman Armstrong Second 

No discussion. Voice vote all in favor (7) 

Senator Sitte Moves do pass SB 2221, as amended, and rerefer to Appropriations 

Senator Flakoll second 

Roll call vote: 7 yes 0 no 0 absent not voting 

Carrier: Chairman Oehlke 



13.0662.02003 
Title. 03000 

Adopted by the Transportation Committee q /­
February 1, 2013 u/ 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2221 
L 17 1r 7 r 

Page 1, l ine 3, remove "and" rJ. 
Page 1, l ine 3, after "transfer" insert "; and to amend and reenact section 24-02-37.2 of the 

North Dakota Century Code, relating to the special road committee" 

Page 1, l ine 20, after the period insert "The special road committee may distribute a maximum 
of $2,500,000 of grants under this section for projects located within the boundaries of 
each department of transportation district in the state. To be eligible to receive a grant 
under this section, the county or township road project must be located within a county 
that levies a combined total of seven or more mills for county road and bridge, 
farm-to-market and federal aid road, and county road purposes. 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 24-02-37.2 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended arid reenacted as fol lows: 

24-02-37.2. Special road committee. 

The special road committee consists of one member of the senate and one 
member of the house of representativeslegislative assembly appointed by the 
chairman of the legislative management, the chairmen of the senate and house of 
representatives transportation committees, the senate minority leader, the house 
m inority leader, the director of the game and fish department, the director of the parks 
and recreation department, and the director of the department of transportation.� 
member of the committee, except the director of the department of transportation, is 
unable to attend a meeting of the committee, the member may appoint a designee to 
serve in the member's place. The director of the department of transportation is 
chairman of the committee. The committee must meet at the call of the director to 
review requests for funding from the special road fund. The committee shall decide 
which project requests will receive funding. The director shall provide staff services to 
the committee. The members of the committee who are members of the legislative 
assembly are entitled to compensation from the department of tra nsportation, from 
m oneys appropriated from the special road fund, for attendance at committee meetings 
at the rate provided for members of the legislative assembly for attendance at interim 
committee meetings and are entitled to reimbursement for expenses incurred in 
attending the meetings in the amounts provided by law for other state officers." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 



Date: February 1 ,  201 3 
Roll Call Vote #: 1 

2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL NO. 2221 

Senate TRANSPORTATION 
----------------��������----------------

Committee 

0 Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 1 3.0662.02001 

Action Taken: 0 Do Pass 0 Do Not Pass 0 Amended I2SJ Adopt Amendment 

0 Rerefer to Appropriations 0 Reconsider 

Motion Made By .Sem-I-or FLal::O LL seconded By Semfoc.Ar1'11 . .t2r/W&!/ 
Senators Yes No Senator Yes No 

Chairman Dave Oehlke Senator Tyler Axness 
Vice Chairman Kelly Armstrong Senator George Sinner 
Senator Margaret Sitte 
Senator Tim Flakol l  
Senator Tom Campbell 

_l 
1 I \ If' -..-

II\ r fiJ If J'\ f*l' 
J v �' .... r " I -

... 

Total (Yes) _?.:..._ _________________ No _0=---------------

Absent 0 ---------------------------------------------------------

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 
To be eligible to receive a grant under this section, the county or township road project must be 
located within a county that levies a combined total of seven or more mil ls for road and bridge 
purposes. 



Date: February 1, 2013 
Roll Call Vote #: 2 

2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL NO. 2221 

Senate TRANSPORTATION ----------------��������---------------- Committee 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 13.0662.02002 

Action Taken: D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Amended IZ[ Adopt Amendment 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Senators 
Chairman Dave Oehlke 
Vice Chairman Kel ly Armstrong 
Senator Margaret Sitte 
Senator Tim Flakol l  
Senator Tom Campbell 

. � 
\I A . -
V U I (.,C:: 'I 

Yes No Senator 
Senator Tyler Axness 
Senator George Sinner 

� ,_ J 
,_ L-. 

v If c. 

Yes No 

Total (Yes) _5 __________________ 
No ......:2::....._ ___________ _ 

Absent 0 �---------------------------------- ---------------------

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 
Establish regionalization to ensure needs all across the state are met. 



Date: February 1, 2013 
Roll Call Vote #: 3 

2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL NO. 2221 

Senate TRANSPORTATION 
--------------------�----��------------------

Committee 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number Senator Flakoll's Amendment (1/J,ofr!110/f!J''*6) 
Action Taken: D Do Pass 0 Do Not Pass D Amended � Adopt Amendment 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By Senator Flakoll Seconded By Vice Chairman Armstrong 

Senators Yes No Senator Yes N o  
Chairman Dave Oehlke Senator Tyler Axness 
Vice Chairman Kelly Armstrong Senator George Sinner 
Senator Margaret Sitte 
Senator Tim Flakoll 
Senator Tom Campbell 

\I ..... r ... L. 
v a 1 r·r � v �u 7r -... -- -

Total (Yes) _7 __________ No _o ______________ _ 

Absent 0 �-------------------------------------------------------

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 
Looking for a broader spectrum of involvement this amendment provides additional legislative 
i nvolvement that would be broader based. 



Date: 3-.,� b c2Dl3 
Rol l  Callvate#: ¥ 

2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. d d. 0 1 
Senate TRANSPORTATION 

----------------��������----------------

0 Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Counci l  Amendment Number IS, {j(p (Q � , 0 d D 0 3 

Committee 

Action Taken: � Do Pass D Do Not Pass � Amended D Adopt Amendment 

fgl Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By � � Seconded By c.:f&naiiYz 2 Q-� 
Senators Yes No Senator Yes No 

Chairman Dave Oehlke / Senator Tyler Axness ../ 
Vice Chairman Kel ly Armstrong ./ Senator George Sinner v 
Senator Margaret Sitte ./ 
Senator Tim Flakoll ./ 
Senator Tom Campbell v 

Total (Yes) --...l...--------- No ��---------------

Absent 0�----------------------------------------------------­
Fioor Assignment J&ncdlYu D� 
If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Com Standing Committee Report 
February 5, 2013 1:58pm 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_21_011 
Carrier: Oehlke 

Insert LC: 13.0662.02003 Title: 03000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2221: Transportation Committee (Sen. Oehlke, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee (7 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 
0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2221 was placed on the Sixth order on the 
calendar. 

Page 1 ,  line 3, remove "and" 

Page 1 ,  line 3, after "transfer" insert "; and to amend and reenact section 24-02-37. 2  of the 
North Dakota Century Code, relating to the special road committee" 

Page 1 ,  line 20, after the period insert "The special road committee may distribute a 
maximum of $2,500,000 of grants under this section for projects located within the 
boundaries of each department of transportation district in the state. To be eligible to 
receive a grant under this section, the county or township road project must be 
located within a county that levies a combined total of seven or more mills for county 
road and bridge, farm-to-market and federal aid road, and county road purposes. 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 22f-02-37.2 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

24-02-37.2. Special road committee. 

The special road committee consists of one member of the senate and one 
member of the house of representatives legislative assembly appointed by the 
chairman of the legislative management, the chairmen of the senate and house of 
representatives transportation committees, the senate minority leader, the house 
minority leader, the director of the game and fish department, the director of the 
parks and recreation department, and the director of the department of 
transportation. If any member of the committee, except the director of the 
department of transportation, is unable to attend a meeting of the committee, the 
member may appoint a designee to serve in the member's place. The director of the 
department of transportation is chairman of the committee. The committee must 
meet at the call of the director to review requests for funding from the special road 
fund. The committee shall decide which project requests will receive funding. The 
director shall provide staff services to the committee. The members of the committee 
who are members of the legislative assembly are entitled to compensation from the 
department of transportation, from moneys appropriated from the special road fund, 
for attendance at committee meetings at the rate provided for members of the 
legislative assembly for attendance at interim committee meetings and are entitled to 
reimbursement for expenses incurred in attending the meetings in the amounts 
provided by law for other state officers." 

Renumber accordingly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_21_011 
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Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolutio 

A Bl LL for an Act to provide an appropriation to the department of transportation for grants to 
counties and townships for improvements to scenic roadways and roadways providing access 
to recreational areas; 

Minutes: 

Legislative Council - Brady Larson 
OMB - Joe Morrissette 

Testimony # 1 

Chairman Holmberg opened the hearing on SB 2221. Roll call was taken. All committee 
members were present. 

Senator Erbele, District 28, Lehr, NO 
Bill Sponsor 
SB 2221 is seeking to put $20 million from the strategic investment fund into a fund for 
scenic roadways, byways, and recreational access. We have discussed in previous 
sessions about getting the roads fixed. The stand-alone projects from individual districts 
don't meet with a lot of approval. The roads are shared by agriculture, tourism, and energy 
so we need to take care of these roads. Tourism is the third largest industry in the state so 
we should be supporting that as we have been supporting agriculture and energy. The 
transportation committee uses a special road funds to get the money distributed. They 
decided to divide the $20 million between the 8 road districts, to make $2.5 million per 
district. The county has to level at least 7 mills. The changed the makeup of the special 
roads committee. I hope the subcommittee says something to the effect that the funds from 
unused districts could be moved to other districts. The intent is that not one area would eat 
up the whole fund. 

Chairman Holmberg If you look at the eight different regions, aren't there greater needs in 
other regions? 

Senator Erbele I am thinking so don't have as much need as others. If I was on the 
Transportation committee I would say we can go to at least three or four regions instead of 
the eight. 
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Chairman Holmberg Is there a possibility of everyone getting part of the money and if they 
don't use it another region that needs it could use it? At the end of the hearing we will be 
sending this bill to the same committee that is doing the department of transportation: 
Senator Lee, Senator Holmberg, Senator Wanzek, and Senator O'Connel. We are trying to 
get all of the transportation issues together. 

V.Chairman Bowman We went to $10,000 per township two years ago in the special 
session and $15,000 this year. Is any of that money in those townships going to go towards 
some of these roads we are talking about now or is this over and above that for the same 
road? 

Senator Erbele The bill says it may require at least 20% from the local counties. I'm hoping 
those dollars we're sending out there could be used on those projects. We're sending them 
money because they are behind. They have to have some skin in the game and the special 
roads committee could require them to have up to 20% come from the locals. 

Senator Robinson, District 24, Valley City, ND 
Co-sponsor 
Testimony attached# 1 - Special Road Fund Study 
I stand in support of this proposal and Senator Erbele explained it well. The economic 
impact in return to invest these dollars in recreational roads is without question. We have 
done a lot of great things in the state with dollars that have been placed in the special roads 
fund so I encourage serious consideration. There are a number of projects across the state 
we have been putting off from year after year for obvious reasons. There comes a time 
when we need to address these projects. There is a need the area of Fort Ransom State 
Park that needs work. It would be a major impact on the whole area around For Ransom. 

Chairman Holmberg: Would you be adverse to changing the language so regions with 
projects can have the funds rather than just spending the money because it is there. 

Senator Robinson: I would be in full support of that. It is an enhancement to the overall 
program statewide. 

(1 0:51) Chairman Holmberg talked about bill language with Brady Larson 

Bill Butcher, Friends of Lake Sakakawea 
Testified in favor of SB 2221 
I testified in front of the Transportation Committee. It costs $1.4 million to pave one mile of 
roads. We would support your comments about transferring funds to another region 
needing the funds. That is really important to us. 

Senator Gary Lee - In terms of the traffic counts or level of activity, what has it been like in 
the last three or four years? 

Bill Butcher - I don't have figures, but there has been a burgeoning population increase. 
The roads are in such terrible shape that it detracts from growth. 
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Senator Gary Lee - There has been some interest in moving gravel roads to paved roads. 
There are issues who will take care of maintaining those. 

Bill Butcher - It does fall on the township or counties. 

Senator Wanzek- I got a call last night for an inquiry on the frontage road at KOA in 
Jamestown. The frontage road is a gravel road and the request was to help pave that. A lot 
of the tourists have expensive vehicles and didn't like driving them on the road. Is that a 
type of project this bill might be able to help? 

Bill Butcher- I don't think KOA falls under recreational area but the situation is the same to 
Indian Hills Resort. They have nice RVs and SUVs pulling expensive boats. If it will include 
the KOA campground that might have to be included in the language. 

Kelly Sorge, Friends of Lake Sakakawea, Indian Hills Resort, Garrison, NO 
Testified in favor of SB 2221 
As a business person the road affects, the delivery trucks, the customers, and the rigs that 
are worth a lot of money. Some are not willing to go down a gravel road. As our Chairman 
of Friends of Lake Sakakawea says, you wouldn't see gravel roads if this lake was in 
another state. People drive hundreds of miles and there first impression is a bumpy dirty 
trail. The special roads committee should decide where the money should be distributed. 
Take into consideration that it is costing a lot more money in some districts. The $20 million 
could be doubled and used pretty easily. Visiting with my County Commissioners, a 
question about the engineering costs came up and that is a question I can't answer. Their 
concern is that if it is the 80/20 they want to be sure the engineering costs are involved as 
well so that isn't a big unforeseen expense for them. They would rather see it 100% but if 
they have to have some meat in that, they are up for that. 

(20:27)V.Chairman Bowman: I come from an oil producing county. We've never had 
enough money to pave our roads or even buy the gravel to put on the roads. After this huge 
project going on when they unitized the fields, they destroyed the roads we had built and 
we have never caught up. We can't take care of the roads we have. If we had big surplus of 
money, I would be all for this but I'm not sure we are going to catch up until this boom is 
over. How do you feel about that? 

Kelly Sorge - One of our committee members is in favor of roads to McKenzie bay. That is 
a recreation road that has always had problems. That's probably the only way he's going to 
get the money to fix that road because it is not a road where the trucks are travelling. They 
are definitely feeling the stresses though. It's not just out of state people. They are also 
North Dakota people. The special roads committee is going to decide where the money is 
going to go and if they feel that county is where it needs to go, that is up to them. 

V.Chairman Bowman Part of the money from the oil producing counties should be going 
to the roads. Not because of the recreation, because of the oil use. If they are not I have a 
question to the County Commissioners as to why not? 

Kelly Sorge - Dividing the money may be the answer to some sore spots. Now they can't 
say we're favoring one place. That would spread it out. We want to see the money go to the 



Senate Appropriations Committee 
SB 2221 
February 11, 2013 
Page4 

entire state. Part of it is that we need to remember people are coming here with bad first 
impressions. Tourism is a very big part of North Dakota. The people in North Dakota 
deserve the roads taken care of so they can enjoy that. 

Chairman Holmberg closed the hearing on SB 2221 
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Chairman Lee opened the subcommittee on 2221. All subcommittee members were 
present: Senators: Holmberg, Wanzek, Lee and O'Connell. 

Brady Larson - Legislative Council 
Sheila Peterson - OMB 

Chairman Lee: This bill has to do with the appropriation of the special road fund, the 20 
million dollars that might come out of strategic investment and improvements fund for 2013-
15; two million five hundred thousand dollar grants for projects located within the 
boundaries of each department of transportation district in the state. It changes the special 
road fund advisory committee as well. Anything the department has to offer in that regard? 

Grant Levi, Interim Director of North Dakota Department of Transportation (DOT) At 
this time DOT has not taken a position on this bill. If the funds were to come to us, we 
would work carry thru like with have with the special roads fund program that's been in 
place for years. We work with the committee, which was expanded to include the Senate 
minority leader and House minority leader, to implement the program. We have some 
concerns that at some point in time, if the decision was made to fund the bill differently (that 
has happened) the funds would be taken from the highway tax distribution fund we would 
be concerned about that. 

Senator Wanzek During the discussion on the bill, wasn't there talk about the 2.5M if not 
used within one district that it could be moved to another district? 

Senator Holmberg Yes, a counter discussion point was that if you hold out 2.5M to a 
region they will find ways to spend it. Alternative was maybe looking at saying that the 
money be spent in at least 4 of the 8 regions. 
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Senator Wanzek In reference to Grant's comments, if funding sources would change; I am 
looking at this as a onetime funding arrangement. It isn't my intention to turn to the 
highway distribution fund 

Chairman Lee The special road fund has % M in it? 

Mr. Levi: That is correct, around $253,000. We should be meeting with the committee 
again this spring. We believe the way the program was initially structured in the sense that 
it was a statewide competition for the funding has worked well. The committee has usually 
recognized that there are needs in each part of the state. We believe that has worked well. 

Chairman Lee I served on that committee for a while, pretty objective, pretty fair. I think 
the state as a whole has gotten such a pretty good coverage in terms of where that money 
has eventually gone. There is just not a lot of money there, in terms of making a significant 
difference nowadays. The way this bill is written, would those funds, be co-mingled or dealt 
with separately? This distribution is not necessarily talking about the 300? 

Mr. Levi: Looking at the legislation, one could interpret it that we would have a cap and 
limitation of a maximum of 2.5M of grants under the entire section for projects located 
within the boundaries of each of the North Dakota Department of Transportation (DOT) 
district. Given that one would have to see how we could work in the present funding we 
have if there is a maximum established of 2.5. We haven't had a chance to talk this 
through. If the requirement in law is that you spend 2.5M in each of the districts then it may 
be appropriate to us just to solicit by district, review and discuss, then prioritize within that 
district. It doesn't give you that statewide perspective in reviewing projects. The 8 districts 
are: Williston, Dickinson, Minot, Bismarck, Devils Lake, Valley City, Grand Forks and 
Fargo. I can get a district boundary map. 

Senator Holmberg The program has been around for some time, in this bill they put the 
restrictions that you got to do it around there, have you had a lot of complaints about how 
the system has worked in the past with less money involved. 

Mr. Levi: We don't get complaints about the process we use for selection. Generally there 
just isn't enough funding available to carry through with the requests that come forward 
the process itself is defendable. It is a rigorous process each committee member is asked 
to select a project and we believe that works well. 

Senator O'Connell I served on that committee never did hear a complaint except we never 
have enough money. 

Senator Wanzek This won't put any additional demands on that committee? It sounds like 
you have a lot of demands that you couldn't fund anyway. 

Mr. Levi: When there is additional funding that will create additional oversight 
requirements on the part of our team to work with. We are comfortable that we have the 
means to administer it. We will also require more time and more reviews by our committee 
members. 
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Chairman Lee What are your wishes with this bill? 

Senator Holmberg I don't know yet, this adds to the budget, whether we call it one time 
funding or not. The one time funding is a convenient explanatory tool. I don't' know if the 
amount of dollars is right. Some senators were concerned that there are some other needs 
that have to be part of the big picture. It's a huge increase. It's gigantic. 

Chairman Lee We heard in the interim people that want to see this work done they have 
good arguments. I wonder where the limits are in terms of county and township roads are 
getting substantial amount this biennium and we need to look where and how much we 
should fund. This will change the dynamics of that considerably. I will be different approach 
to funding what had been nice tourist areas or the roads to them. The projects that are 
coming through for this type of grants would be a lot different. I think we have to look 
realistically at the dollars we are going to spend. 

Senator Wanzek You are making good point. We have not had any prior studies on this; 
we have nothing to go on. I am not sure 20M is the right number, we are basing that on 
some of the upper Great Plains studies, and I feel infrastructure is a wise use of one time 
funds. We had something to guide us a little bit on the roads. I am a little less prepared to 
explain why we need 20M here. I sat on the transportation committee, I do recall there 
being quite a few requests and the money is pretty paltry. I am not ready to vote. I don't 
want to vote against this maybe there is a number that is more realistic for the next 
biennium. 

Senator Holmberg There is two avenues that this committee could take. We can roll it into 
2012 at the end of the day, which would truly set up discussion with the House, on the 
needs of the special road funds. If we put the bill out there by itself, it may not be part of 
the final discussion. If we think it's important to continue the discussion until the end of 
April, then we should consider putting it in the DOT. Its budget is large, but it is going to 
pass at the end of the day. That is the decision this committee will be making 
recommendations on. 

Senator O'Connell Give each district one million dollars and roll it in 2012. 

Senator Holmberg That would not reduce it much. I am not ready for a number. Let's 
keep our thinking caps on. We have a little time. 

Chairman Lee We will adjourn subcommittee on 2221. 
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A subcommittee for DOT regarding roadways to recreational facilities 

Minutes: You may rna 

Chairman Lee called the subcommittee to order at 4:30 pm. Let the record show that all 
committee members were present. Holmberg, O'Connell & Wanzek 

Brady Larson - Legislative Council 
Laney Herauf- OM 

Chairman Lee- We discussed this bill yesterday, everybody knows what it is about, what it 
intends to do. Dave from DOT sent a map outlining the different regions/districts for North 
Dakota Department of Transportation (DOT). Any other discussion or suggestion 

Senator Wanzek move a do pass. 2"d by Senator O'Connell. On 2221 No discussion 

Roll call vote: Lee no, Wanzek yes, Senator O'Connell yes. Holmberg no Motion 
fails. 

Senator Wanzek a do not pass would result in the same outcome do we, as a 
subcommittee, make a "without committee recommendation". 

Senator Holmberg we just put it back up on the calendar as a bill that's ready to go and 
discuss it before the full committee. 

Senator Holmberg move we do not pass. 2"d by Senator O'Connell No other 
discussion 

Roll call vote: Lee yes, Holmberg yes, Wanzek no. Senator O'Connell yes. The do 
not pass motion carries 3 to 1 

Chairman Lee adjourned the subcommittee hearing on SB 2221. 
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This is a vote on SB 2221 which has to do with appropriating money to the department of 
transportation for grants to counties and townships for improvements to scenic roadways 
and roadways providing access to recreational areas. 

Minutes: 

Chairman Holmberg opened the hearing on SB 2221. 

Senator Gary Lee: This bill was taking $21M out of the strategic investments and 
improvements fund for scenic roadways and recreational areas around the state; and 
related to the special load fund that changed the committee membership a little bit in 
adding the minority senate and house leaders to it. The money was to be spent (a change 
that came out of the policy committee) using the eight North Dakota Department of 
Transportation (DOT) districts and allowing $2.5M grants to each. The committee 
recommended a DO NOT PASS. Some of the arguments were that each of the counties, 
townships, etc. are getting added fees, added dollars into their treasuries with the 
distribution of funds. The funding amount is increasing and adding $2.5M to the 8 districts 
doesn't necessarily mean there is significant projects or needs in those areas. The special 
road fund has been around for a long time. It has operated off interest on federal money 
going to the highway fund. The dollars have not been there because of the interest rates. 
They have taken on a lot of projects around the state. It was intended to be a fund that did 
small projects in terms of small road improvements or accesses to recreational areas. Part 
of the committee thought that the $21M, changes what that fund was intended to do in a 
very dramatic way. Some recreational areas want gravel roads changed to pavement 
roads, but who is going to maintain them? The counties don't want to fix them; the 
townships can't do it because of the dollar amount involved. We understand their needs but 
really didn't think that changing the special road fund in this way was an appropriate way to 
do it. 

Senator Robinson: - I  would disagree. There is no other option in counties and cities. 
Although they are going to get the township some extra money the backlog is long and 
significant. We're seeing a real slow down in these type of projects. We're putting this 
program in cold storage if we don't fund it. $20M looks like a lot of money but costs have 
increased significantly. The special road fund that we have known in the past is not able to 
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meet the needs of today construction projects. We have to find a way of funding them or 
they are not going to get done. We have a number of areas that could add to the quality of 
life with no big investment. I hope we look at this and support 2221. 

Senator Gary Lee: I don't disagree entirely but look across the state to the projects that 
have been done, a significant number. Doing what they propose to this fund will take a lot 
of small projects out of play because the big money will go to bigger projects. A lot of things 
aren't going to get done, like fixing access to roads and interchange - those kinds of 
projects won't get done. 

Senator Robinson: We should amend the bill and correct it, so both can be done. Or we 
tell folks they need to wait another five year. 

Senator Erbele: - reason for going to the special road funds, it was a mechanism for 
distributing the funds without creating a separate fund. I agree with Senator Robinson ­
we've been kicking this around for a long time. Everybody is using the roads, agriculture, 
energy and tourism. They are big players in the state. This bill is a way to support them all. 

Senator Gary Lee Moved Do Not Pass. 
V.Chairman Bowman seconded. 
A roll call vote was taken. Yea: 5 Nay: 8 Absent: 0 
Motion failed. 

Senator Mathern Moved Do Pass and re refer to transportation 
Senator Erbele seconded 
A roll call vote was taken. Yea: 8 Nay: 5 Absent: 0 

The bill goes to Transportation and Senator Oehlke will carry the bill on the floor. 
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A BILL for an Act to provide a ppropriation to the department of transportation for grants 
to counties and townships for improvements to scenic roadways and roadways providing 
access to recreational areas; to provide for a transfer; and to amend and reenact section 
24-02-37.2 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the special road committee. 

Minutes: Attachments 1 -7 

Chairman Ruby opened the hearing on SB 2221 . 

Senator Robert Erbele, District 28, spoke to support SB 2221 . Written testimony was 
provided . See attachment #1 . 

Representative Becker: Do you feel that you need $20 million for the projects in your 
specific area for recreational improvement? 

Senator Erbele: No, we don't need $20 million in our area. If the county in my d istrict can 
match 20%, they could get by with $2 million. We d id not want to present an isolated 
project. Every d istrict has something that needs improvement, so we wanted to make the 
fund large enough to touch all of those projects. 

Representative Delmore: How much road will $20M actually fix or pave? 

Senator Erbele: Now, a mile of pavement might cost close to $2 million dollars. Most of 
the areas have a half mile to three miles of access road. 

Representative Heller: On line 1 8  it says that a match MAY be required. So, a match 
does not have to be required? Would it just be on a project by project basis? 

Senator Erbele: Yes, that is what the Senate policy committee put in. I felt that up to 20% 
match should be required, but there may be a reason that they couldn't. I do feel that they 
should have some skin in the game. 

Representative Heller: It says that the project amount will not be limited. Could one 
project take up all the money for the biennium? 
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Senator Erbele: I understand that would be up to the committee to decide. 

Representative Gruchella: Would this be restricted to roads or could this be used for a 
paved bike trail? 

Senator Erbele: The sponsors weren't thinking bicycles;  we were thinking roads to keep 
your RVs and boats to a recreational area. 

Representative Gruchella: I'm hoping that this wouldn't be so specific that it wouldn't 
allow the leeway for something like that. 

Senator Erbele: The committee will have to find that out. 

Chairman Ruby: Would this require the same application process, or is that for us to 
determine? 

Senator Erbele: It would work much as is does now when they go to the special roads 
fund. We attached it to something so it had a mechanism to distribute. We just had to 
change the rules of the special road fund a little bit. 

Chairman Ruby: It states that the project must be in a county that levies seven or more 
mills. Do all the counties do that, or how many don't? 

Senator Erbele: I don't know if some are below that. 

Chairman Ruby: Do you add three members to the committee? 

Senator Erbele: That was done in policy, and I sit in appropriations. I did not ask 
specifically why they thought they needed to be on there. 

Senator Ron Carlisle, District 30, Bismarck: I am not a sponsor of this bill, but I do hunt, 
fish, and camp a lot. I would ask that you give this bill a good look. Pulling campers into 
some of these areas is difficult. 

Senator Larry Robinson, District 24: There is clearly a need for this bill. It branches out 
across the entire state. We have needs in the Sheyenne River area as well as the people 
at Lake Sakakawea who have been working on a project for some time. We appreciate 
your consideration of the bill. As far as membership on the committee, the Department of 

Transportation recommended that we not create another administrative agency. That is 
why it is the special roads fund. 

Bill Butcher, Friends of Sakakawea, spoke to ask for support for SB 2221. Written 
testimony was provided. (17:10) See attachment # 2.  

Clarence Weltz, Parshall, North Dakota, provided written testimony to support SB 2221. 
(21: 1 0) The testimony was read by Bill Butcher. See attachment #3. 
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Representative Delmore: Do they have any statistics of what those numbers were before 
they paved the roads? 

Bill Butcher: I don't know. I could try to find out. 

Representative Vigesaa: I don't see in the legislation that it is a requirement that the 
roads be paved. Could the projects just be regrading and graveling to a better level? 

Bill Butcher: Yes, they could, but the committee felt that there is so much traffic on most 
of the roads that gravel immediately becomes wash boarded and is very ruinous to RVs 
and boats. 

Representative Becker: On your website it lists seven areas that need attention. H ow 
many of the seven would fall into one district? 

Bill Butcher: In anticipation of the 2009 or 201 1 session bill, we prioritized the recreational 
areas on Lake Sakakawea that we felt deserved attention. If we had our way the special 
roads committee would start at the top of the list and as money is available work their way 
down. But, that is the troublesome part about the money being divided into eight districts, 
with no way to shift funding if one district has less need than another. It would be so much 
better if we g ave the special  roads committee the latitude and authority to prioritize 
themselves and make the determinations. 

Representative Delmore: If  the dollars stay at $20M, would you be in favor of using the 
money for four projects instead of trying to equal it out, and letting the committee decide 
what the priority would be? 

Bill Butcher: We wouldn't be opposed to that. Our preference would be that the special 
road committee decides the number of projects they can fund with the money that is 
available. 

Chairman Ruby: Are the costs that were g iven to us for paving that would be at State 
H ig hway specs? Would it possibly be cheaper to pave some of the county or township 
roads? 

Bill Butcher: I don't know. Maybe someone else can answer that. 

Bill Shalhoob, North Dakota Tourism Alliance Partnership, spoke to support SB 222 1 . 
TAP looks at the tourism industry from a broad perspective. I the last few years hotels and 
restaurants have increased about 40%. We are looking to a time when the oil tapers off, 
and what we can do for that time. We would like to get infrastructure built in the state to 
build up things that people can see in the future. Marketing is important; as the oil industry 
use declines what can we replace it with? The answer is: more visitors to the state. We 
w ant to be able to attract people to the state. Another part of this is contained in this bill. 
We have some sites that have infrastructure built; we are marketing to get them interested; 
and now we need to get the roads built to get them there. Good roads make for delivery of 
people that allow our business to keep going. We are asking that you support this bill. I t  
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helps fill in the piece that grows the infrastructure that is necessary to keep attracting 
visitors to North Dakota. 

Greg Goschee, Mountrail County Commissioner, spoke in support of SB 2221 .  He 
referred to the letter from Clarence Weltz, former Mountrail County Commissioner. See 
attachment # 3. (35:45-44:00) He discussed the recreation areas that have paved roads. 
They have excellent access. The visitation numbers are way up there. Some numbers 
from the Corps counts are: Fort Stevenson - 74,800, Sakakawea State Park - 69,700, 
Lewis and Clark State Park - 57, 1 00. Van Hook is a county park with 89,000 visitors 
because it is three miles off of a main highway with good access. The reason those parks 
are the way they are, is because of the paved roads. Twenty million dollars is really short 
when it comes to building roads. I agree with changing the $20 million back to the original 
$40 million .  I n  Mountrail County $1 .4 million dollars is about the figure it will take t o  build a 
mile of road . In western North Dakota you do have to build the roads up to state highway 
specs. The Parshall Bay road is used by the oil field just like the Van Hook road . We have 
a young community that is coming to the west. They need places to go. Let's get these 
roads fixed. 

Representative Gruchella: Does your county have a dedicated mill levy towards roads? 

Greg Goschee: Yes, but I don't know exactly what it is. It is more than 1 0  because we 
have to qualify for everything. 

Representative Gruchella: If you build a road to the lake for campers and boats, are you 
going to build it to the same point that will allow oil trucks to use the same road? 

Greg Goschee: No, but I used the Parshall Bay road as an example because it is used by 
the oil field. It used to be a 65,000 pound road. At 65,000 pounds you are even limiting 
farmers hauling a regular semi-truck. When we put a top on that road, we raised it to 
80,000 pounds. It depends on where the road is. Some of these roads would be built for 
recreation and commercial traffic. 

Bill Mitzel, publisher of Dakota Country magazine, Bismarck, spoke to support SB 
2221 . Written testimony was provided. (48 :00) See attachment # 4. 

Representative Delmore: Do you know what Burleigh County levies for roads? 

Bill Mitzel: I don't. 

Michael Gunsch, Vice Chairman of Friends of Sakakawea, spoke to support SB 2221 .  
Written testimony was provided. (53:20) See attachment # 5. 

Representative Fransvog: Are there other funding sources out there besides the state? 

Michael Gunsch: There are other funds out there. In western North Dakota the problem 
is that every dime is being used to keep up with what they are already doing. Reallocating 
funds for these types of roadways are not always a priority. Townships are broke, counties 
have very limited resources, and the next step is the state. 
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Representative Fransvog: Have you considered special assessments? 

Michael Gunsch: That really depends on the project area. What is the level of traffic, and 
what is the need. Townships and counties do have the ability to create special assessment 
districts. I don't know how much that option has been considered. 

Chairman Ruby: Do you perceive that if these grants come in, would they not be eligible 
for the other application process for the funds that are normally dispersed in the special 
roads fund , or would it be in addition to those? 

Michael Gunsch: It is the same process and same pot. 

Chairman Ruby: This expands it to some different areas, so it is expanded some. 

Michael Gunsch: I think that you are right. There may be some special applications that 
could be submitted for these specific funds. I don't know what that fund has in it right now. 

Chairman Ruby: I think it has been $200,000 - $300,000 in the last few years. 

Representative Gruchella: The state has given some money back to property owners in 
the form of property tax relief. Should the property owners step up try to do some of these 
projects? 

Michael Gunsch: From the perspective of someone who lives along the road , I would not 
see that as my responsibility to pay for that road . I would already pay taxes to that should 
provide for the upkeep of the road. The use that is causing the breakdown of the road 
probably isn't from my use. The local and county are going to have to decide how they 
come up with their match. If they feel that the special assessment district is the way to 
accomplish that match, versus their normal township funds, they wil l  have to consider it. 

Representative Drovdal: I am familiar with McKenzie Bay Marine Club which is in Dun 
County. The road that goes into there, currently, was made and maintained by the 50 
cabin owners that are there. They have no ability to put a special assessment on, but we 
do kick into the kitty. A fund like this would be something that this group would try to qualify 
for. The area is being used by people from all over North Dakota. It is the only deep water 
recreational site on the west side of Lake Sakakawea. 

Michael Gunsch: (1 :06:44) The projects that I am familiar with already have had a lot 
invested in them, and they have tried to keep them up to standards ,  but they can't take 
them to the next level. They have limited dollars. Each applicant should tel l  the committee 
what they have done and what they have invested locally. I think that the committee should 
have that information when they make their decision. 

Randy Hatzenbuhler, President of the Theodore Roosevelt Medora Foundation spoke 
in support of SB 2221. Written testimony was provided. (1 :08:14) He agrees that $20 
million is not enough, but it is a good start. See attachment # 6 .  
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Terry Traynor, North Dakota Association of Counties, we very much support SB 2221. 
We agree with the match and are supportive of that. In addressing the mill levy questions, 
currently the gross production tax revenue tax distribution has a threshold for receiving it at 
10 mills. All the western oil counties do levy that. In this time of rising property values we 
have counties in the state that are barely above seven, some have fallen below seven in 
recent years in what they levy for roads. This is sort of an encouragement to keep raising 
your mill levy. That is challenging for some counties, to ask their citizens to raise their 
taxes. 

Chairman Ruby: Does the 10 mills include the farm to market roads? 

Terry Traynor: The farm to market road program is whatever the voters vote in. There is 
no specific mill levy requirement. It is whatever is put on the ballot by the commissioners or 
by petition of the citizens. Some counties have a 15 mill farm to market levy, some have 
only 5 mills. 

Representative Vigesaa: Are you aware of any counties or townships that use regular tax 
revenue to do projects like this, or do they always go to the Special Roads Fund? 

Terry Traynor: I really couldn't say. There are a lot of roads to a lot of parks and 
recreational areas across the state. Someone has to be grading them and graveling them 
now, so there is some local money going into those roads. My understanding of this is to 
target the roads with the high volume of traffic to a very popular recreation facility. 

Representative Delmore: Did you say how many counties have less than 7 mills? 

Terry Traynor: I believe there are three that are less and two that are barely above seven. 

Harold Newman, President of Newman Traffic Signs, spoke to support SB 2221. He 
feels that there are a lot of good tourist areas in the state that need support. The buffalo 
area in Jamestown is one of those areas. It needs a better road for access from the east. 
A proposed amendment was provided. (1: 16:30) In order to meet the standards for 
roadwork in the state, there are five companies that manufacture the signs and install them. 
They are necessary. See attachment #7. 

Representative Gruchella: Is the road to the buffalo area in Jamestown inside the city 
limits? 

Harold Newman: It is inside the city limits, and most of it is owned by the state hospital. 

Representative Gruchella: So, isn't that road very high on the city's priority list? 

Harold Newman: It should be higher. 

Representative Gruchella: Has the city turned you down when you asked to fix that road? 



House Transportation Committee 
SB 2221 
03-2 1 - 1 3  
Page ? 

Harold Newman: The argument that we get is that the standards have to be changed . It 
has to wind around another area west of the water plant. One of the problems is that it is 
now open twelve months, so sometimes snow removal is a problem. 

Chairman Ruby: Do you know how many private sector vendors we have to receive bids 
on for signage? 

Harold Newman: Five in the state. 

Chairman Ruby: This language would mainly eliminate Roughrider Industries? 

Harold Newman: I hope so. 

There was no further support for SB 2221. 
There was no opposition to SB 2221. 

Steve Salwei represented the Department of Transportation and spoke in a neutral 
capacity. 

Vice Chairman Owens: Can you get us the average daily traffic counts in some of these 
areas, the six that were in Clarence Weltz's testimony? 

Steve Salwei, Transportations Programs Director for the Department of 
Transportation: I can go back and look for those. 

Representative Oversen: I know a lot of these routes are on Ft. Berthhold Reservation, 
and I was wondering how this will work together with that? 

Steve Salwei: Currently the Department of Transportation sends out letters to every 
county, city, and tribal agency in the state informing them of the program. The tribal areas 
are eligible to receive funding through this program as well. If they do have a project, they 
can submit it to the committee. 

Representative Drovdal: How do you get numbers for a place that is a long way from a 
road , like the McKenzie Bay Marine Club? It is twenty miles from any road . 

Steve Salwei: We used to count every road every three years, and now in the west we try 
to count every year. The other two areas we now try to count on alternative years. 

Chairman Ruby: Do you have the actual number of dollars that is in the Special Roads 
Fund? 

Steve Salwei: The number for the most current year is about $300,000. 

Representative Weisz: What is the cost share for the local subdivisions? 
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Steve Salwei: Currently under the Special Roads Fund the maximum one entity could 
receive is $250,000. On a normal federal aid project the cost share is 20%. Through the 
Special Roads Fund the current policy is a 60/40 match. 40% is local. 

Representative Vigesaa: Is there a minimum that needs to be retained in the special road 
fund? 

Steve Stalwei: No, the funds are there to be d istributed out. 

Representative Vigesaa: How many projects are in the que waiting to be heard? 

Steve Stalwei: Currently we have thirteen applications for the $300,000. The total cost of 
al l  of those projects is about $3.6  mill ion. The Special Roads Fund requested dollars is 
about $1.9 mill ion. 

The hearing was closed on SB 2221. 
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Chairman Ruby brought SB 2221 back before the committee. He commented that if the 
committee passes this bill, we may want to make an amendment with a reallocation option 
in case some of the districts don't use their funds. There is also a request for a possible 
emergency clause. 

Chairman Ruby: I don't like the expansion of the committee in the bill. In the Special 
Roads Fund committee we have a requirement of a 40% match. This bill drops that down 
to 20%. 

An informational sheet was provided to the committee with requested information from 
Steve Salwei , North Dakota Department of Transportation. See attachment #1. 

Representative Weisz: I don't see why we would need any for any language specifying 
where the funds have to go. You sit on the committee. The committee has a process that 
scores every project and then d iscusses them. I think it is a thorough process by a d iverse 
group of people. The committee has worked well for years. 

Chairman Ruby: I don't think we need to add more legislators because then it will get more 
political. 

Representative Weisz: Then you could argue the need for regions. 

Chairman Ruby: We look at the project, what the damage is, the amount of traffic, or what 
they have been helped with in the past. Some come back for a few years in a row. Then I 
might score them higher since we haven't g iven them anything before. Then the parks and 
rec, or Department of Transportation they might look at a project in a d ifferent way. It is a 
good system. 

Representative Becker: It seems to me that the Friends of Sakakawea have a real desire 
to have some improvement for their industry, and the means by which they thought they 
would have a greater chance of passing this through was to not limit it to a very small and 
specific constituency group. So, they raised the amount that they want so it could be 
d ispersed throughout all the Department of Transportation d istricts to make it a whole state 
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thing, not just one small region versus another. That also brought in some areas like the 
Jamestown buffalo and the Chateau de' Mores. Those bring in some good money. I think 
the counties and specific industries should be interested. I am not viewing this very 
favorably. 

Representative Fransvog: I agree with Representative Weisz that we should leave the 
funding allocation with the committee. I also think it is reasonable to look at a reallocation 
of unused money. 

Chairman Ruby: If the district part of this goes away, I don't think we need the reallocation 
either. We have had some projects that banked what we gave them before, and then 
asked for more to finish their project. 

Representative Fransvog: I think that it is not unreasonable to look at a reallocation if a 
project is completed, and they have a significant amount of money left. 

Chairman Ruby: They do that normally. There have been some monies that have been 
turned back because they couldn't get their own matching funds or the scope of the project 
changed. It is currently allowed. 

Representative Drovdal: Would you like me to get an emergency clause on this and take 
it up to Legislative Council to get the amendments done? 

Chairman Ruby: Yes, draft it the way you want. 

Representative Sukut: Why are we taking seven mills out of this? Most require ten. It is 
not hurting anything by having it in there. 

Representative Drovdal: Okay, I will leave it in there. 

Representative Weisz: With the property tax reform, there won't even be a specified mill 
levy for roads. We could run into the issue of requiring something that doesn't exist. 

Vice Chairman Owens: If that happened, they would be frozen at the levied part of their 
budget which establishes their base year. They couldn't raise it if we said ten, which is a 
good point. I f  we raise it to ten ,  they wouldn't have a chance to raise it, other than the 
normal process of the restrictions. 

Representative Weisz: If that mill is consolidated in the overall county budget, there is no 
longer a specified ten mills; there is only a dollar amount. The county has the flexibility 
then to increase or decrease that. So, we really don't even have a dollar number to apply 
those criteria to. Is that correct? 

Vice Chairman Owens: Actually it works out to 70 cents per 1000 for seven mills. It will 
take two years to get that out. 

Chairman Ruby: The original bill didn't have anything about mills in it. 
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Representative Weisz: It could say up to 40% match and leave the decision up to the 
committee depending on the situation. 

Representative Drovdal: Twenty million dollars sounds like a lot of money to us, but 
when it comes to road construction it's not. It is going to be designated more for the 
smaller projects that finish off a road into a recreation area, not to build a main county road. 

Chairman Ruby: The committee does get requests for new gravel bases. 

Representative Kreun: The language says for scenic byways and roads into recreational 
areas. Are we expanding this discussion? 

Chairman Ruby: Yes, that is what it is to be used for, but there are roads, like the one that 
goes to Van Hook, that are used by the oil industry as well. 

Representative Drovdal: When this bill was put in, the money was intended for small 
recreational areas that don't have any other place to get money. The major oil road funding 
should come from somewhere else. 

Chairman Ruby: We will hold the bill until we get some amendments. 
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Chairman Ruby brought SB 2221 back before the committee. 

Representative Drovdal brought forward amendments and moved a DO PASS on the 
amendments. See attachment #1. The amendments put the bil l back in its original form 
and add an emergency clause. 
Representative Sukut seconded the motion. 

Chairman Ruby: This takes out the districts and the mills. It is stil l at the 20% match. 
like the original version of the bil l better than the engrossed form. 

There was discussion about the purpose of the bill and the amendment. It gives additional 
money to the Special Road Fund since the interest going into that fund has been limited in 
the past years. There is need for recreational areas to have access roads improvement. 
(The recorder quit and some of the discussion was not recored. )  

A voice vote was taken. Al l  aye. The motion carried . 

Representative Kreun stated his concern about spending $20 million for special roads and 
not being able to get funds to finish building one of the main arteries in Grand Forks that 
goes to the hospital without having to split the project into three parts. Only half of the road 
wil l  be funded this session, and they wil l  have to come back next session for additional 
funding . He will not support the bill. (2:47) 

Representative Heller: Representative Drovdal said that the counties and the townships 
don't handle the money, but in the bil l it says that the counties and townships apply for the 
grants. So, if the counties and townships aren't responsible for the road, where is the 
disconnect? 

Representative Drovdal: There has to be someone to apply for the grant. Some of these 
areas might be on Corp of Engineers or tribal land. 
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Representative Heller: So the county would just act as a pass-through and hand the 
money over to someone else? 

Representative Sukut: Over the years there has been a lot of work that hasn't been done 
on the roads throughout the entire state. Many things have been overlooked because we 
have not had money. Over the last five or six years I have been telling people that we have 
money, and now is the time that we should be looking at projects that have fallen through 
the cracks and have not been addressed for years and years. This is one of those projects. 
Now we have an opportunity to do some of these things that we haven't been able to do. I 
think this is something we need to support. It is a one-time spending , not an ongoing 
expense. I 'd like to see this go forward. 

Vice Chairman Owens: There were some comments made in the hearing. The one thing 
that bothered me the most was when someone stood there and told us that there are oil 
trucks that use these roads. They are not talking about the little pieces of roads to 
recreational areas. They were talking about whole roads that they want to work on. With 
all of the work that we have to do, and all of the roads that we have to rebuild that people 
are actually using , I can't support a road that has an average daily traffic count of 65. 

Vice Chairman Owens moved a DO NOT PASS as amended on 58 2221 . 
Representative Kreun seconded the motion. 
A rol l  cal l  vote was taken. Aye 8 Nay 6 Absent 0 The motion carried. 
Vice Chairman Owens wil l  carry 58 2221 . (End time 8 :00) 
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P ROPOSED AMEND MENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2221 

Page 1 ,  l ine 3, remove "amend and reenact section 24-02-37.2 of' 

Page 1 ,  line 4 ,  replace "the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the special road committee" 
with "declare an emergency" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 8, remove "on" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 9, replace "July 1 ,  2013" with "during the period beginning with the effective date of 
this Act and ending June 30, 201 5" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 5, remove "biennium beginning July 1 ,"  

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 6, replace "2013,"  with "period beginning with the effective date of this Act" 

Page 1 ,  line 21 , remove "The special" 

Page 1 ,  remove lines 22 through 24 

Page 2, replace lines 1 through 22 with: 

"SECTION 3. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency measure. " 

Renumber accordingly 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2221 , as engrossed: Transportation Committee (Rep. Ruby, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO NOT 
PASS (8 YEAS, 6 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2221 was 
placed on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1 ,  line 3 ,  remove "amend and reenact section 24-02-37.2 of' 

Page 1 ,  line 4 ,  replace "the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the special road 
committee" with "declare an emergency" 

Page 1 ,  line 8, remove "on" 

Page 1 ,  line 9, replace "July 1 ,  201 3" with "during the period beginning with the effective 
date of this Act and ending June 30, 201 5" 
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Page 1 ,  line 1 6, replace "20 1 3," with "period beginning with the effective date of this Act" 

Page 1 ,  line 2 1 ,  remove "The special" 

Page 1 ,  remove lines 22 through 24 

Page 2, replace lines 1 through 22 with: 

"SECTION 3. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency 
measure." 

Renumber accordingly 
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Chairman Oeh l ke, a n d  mem bers of the Senate Transportation Committee, for the 

record my name is Robert Erbe le, Senator from district 28. 

SB2221 is a bi l l  to a d d ress the need to u pdate our road s  lead ing  to recreationa l  

access a n d  sce nic byway a n d  backway roads. The b i l l  requ ests that 20 m i l l ion 

dol lars be appropriated from the Strategic I nvestment a nd I m provement Fun d .  

A l ittle h i story on t h e  fu nd . The fu nd was estab l ished last sessio n  b y  H B  1451 that 

instructed the State Treasurer to close out the la nds a n d  m inera ls  trust fu nd and 

tra nsfer a ny rema i n in g  u nobl igated ba lance to the strategic investment and 

i m provements fu n d  The bi l l stated i t  is the i ntent of the Legisl a tive Assem bly that 

the fu n d  be used for o n e-time expenditures relating to i mprov i n g  state 

i nfrastructu re or i n itiatives to i m prove the efficiency a n d  effectiveness of state 

government. H B145 1 created a new cha pter to the Centu ry Cod e  to provide for 

the a l location of the state's share of oi l  a nd gas tax revenues d esignated for 

deposit to the fol l owin g  fu nds  . 

. The first $200 m i l l ion  is deposited i n  the general fu n d  

.The next $341,790,000 is deposited in  t h e  property tax re l ief s u stai n a bi l ity fu nd 

.The next $100,000 m i l l ion is d eposited i n  the genera l fu n d  

. The next $100,000 m i l l ion is deposited i n  the strategic i nvestme nt a n d  

improvement fun d  

.The next $ 2 2  m i l l i o n  i s  deposited i n  the state d isaster rel ief fu nd,  

a n d  a ny add itiona l  reve nue is d eposited i n  the strategic i nvestment and 

improvements fun d .  

There i s  a hea lthy b a l a n ce i n  the fu nd today, but whether  o r  n ot we choose that 

fun d  or if the Appro p riation s  com m ittee deems the re is a fun d  that may fit these 

projects better, it is i mporta nt to move forward whi le we have the resou rces to 

e n ha nce the access to some o u r  states' specia l  sites . 

Each session legis lato rs have req uests from their constituents for special projects 

with i n  their d istricts, a n d  isolated sta nd a lone bi l ls  that on ly se rve one d istrict as a 

genera l  rule do not receive a favora ble outcome. SB2221 is d es igned to put a 

pool of money together  to a d d ress road i mprovements to sce n ic a reas and 



recreationa l  access o n  a statewide basis. The re a re ind ivid u a ls h e re today from 

d ifferent l oca les i n  North Dakota to spea k to the benefits of provid ing fu nds  for 

those a reas. 

I would  l i ke to give just a l ittle more background o n  h ow p rojects of th is type are 

cu rrently fu nded . These type of projects a re fu n ded from the s pecia l roads fund 

with i n  the department of tra nsportation 's  budget. That pool receives its money 

from the i nterest on the fu nds  we receive from the Fede ra l  Hi way d istri bution 

fu nd .  As you know i nterest rates a re very low so the special  roads  fu n d  has been 

struggl ing/ p lus it is l i m ited to 2501000 dol lars per project/ it fu n ctio n s  as a 

supplement to loca l s u bd ivision efforts. 

S B 2221 d i rects the money to be put i nto the specia l  road fund a s  m e a n s  to assist 

the DOT i n  the d isbursements of the fu nds/ however it d oes remove the do l lar  

l i m itations and has permissive language that depe nd i ng o n  the p roject they may 

req u i re that u p  to 20% be fun ded from the local subdivisio n . 

There a re three cha rges that the people of N o rth Dakota have g iven this  

legislature i n  rega rds to our surplus. 1 .  I m prove our  i nfrastru ctu re/ th is  b i l l  does 

that. 2 .  Send some money back to the people/ this b i l l  wi l l  bri ng m o n ey and 

economic development to t hose com m u n ities receivi ng the fu n ds.  3 .  Property tax 

re l ief1 th is b i l l  wi l l  provide rel ief to those com m u n ities that have struggled for 

yea rs to ra ise the reven ues for these special projects . 

I ask for you r  favora ble con sideration of this SB221. 



January 30, 2013 

Senate Bill 2221 

Senate Transportation Committee 

Hono rable Sen. David Oehlke, Chairperson 

Testimony - Sen. Larry Robinson 

Good morning M r. Chairperson and members of the committee.  I am providing written testimony today 

in support of SB2221. SB 2221 would surcha rge the special roads fund within the Department of 

Transportation .  The Special Roads fund was established by the legislative assem b ly. The legislation 

d i rected the interest income earned on the highway fund be deposited into the fund. The dol lars in  this 

fund were overseen by the Special Road Committee.  I have attached to my testim o ny a background 

memorandum prepared by the Legislative Counci l  staff for the Transportation Committee in September 

of 2011. The memorandum provides a history of the fund and a listing of  the m any p rojects that have 

been funded over the yea�. 

M r. Chairperson and membe rs of the committee. The concept embedded in the special  Roads Fund is as  

relevant today as i t  was when the fund was established. The projects funded by th is  m e a ns a re of 

significant value to the state of North Dakota . The fund has provided for projects at recreational a reas, 

parks, wild life, and so m uch more.  These projects would otherwise not be com pleted if it were not for 

this special  fund. It is safe to say that these projects promote tourism and enhance the qua lity of l ife for 

the citizens of North Dakota. 

There a re others that will testify in support of SB2221. I bel ieve the time has come for us to surcharge 

this fund so we can m ove forward with projects that would fall into the classification as special road 

fund designation.  
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SPECIAL ROAD FUND STUDY - BACKGROUND MEMORANDUM 
House Concurrent Resolution No. 3032 (201 1 )  

(attached as an appendix) directs the Legislative 
Management to study the needs of, economic values 
of, and methods to improve access roadways to 
recreational, tourist, and historical sites in  North 
Dakota. Presently, access roads are funded through 
the special road fund. The resolution recognizes that 
funding through the special road fund is inadequate to 
meet the needs of access roadways, and many of 
these roadways are in a significant state of disrepair 
or are in  need of improvement. The resolution states 
that county and township funding is inadequate to 
meet the needs of access roadways. The resolution 
stresses that access roadways represent a value and 
provide an opportunity to increase income to local and 
state economies by increasing demand to visit the 
sites to which access roadways connect. The 
resolution recognizes that each access roadway 
varies in the condition, use, need, and value, and the 
appropriate manner in which to address the need of 
the access roadway depends on the facts surrounding 
each roadway. The resolution requires the study to 
focus on designated or named public or privately 
developed recreation areas, potential funding 
requirements through the special road fund or other 
appropriate funding method for the identified access 
roadway improvements, and the ability of the local 
governmental entities to operate and maintain these 
improvements when completed. In short, the study is 
of the funding of roads and road maintenance for 
roads that access tourist destinations, especially 
recreational areas. 

LEGISLATIVE H ISTORY 
The minutes and testimony for House Concurrent 

Resolution No. 3032 reveal: . 
• Many of the proponents for the study have 

interests in and around Lake Sakakawea or 
Lake Oahe. 

• The goal of proponents of the study is to 
expand the special road fund, perhaps by 
identifying new sources of revenues. 

• Funding is inadequate to meet current and 
future needs. 

• Roads throug h  the Army Corps of Eng ineers' 
property create special needs for funding. 

• The study should identify needs, prioritize the 
needs, and fund the prioritized needs. The first 
step of the study should be to identify and 
prioritize access roadways based on needs and 
values of the site connected with the roadway. 
Next, determine the reasonable level of access 
before the existing and projected use and 
needs of each site. Finally, determine if the 
improvement significantly increases the use of 
the site and justifies the investment. 

In short, the study is of money and priorities based 
on a cost and benefit analysis. 

There has not been any recent study or legislation, 
besides the 2009 legislation mentioned later in the 
STATUTORY HISTORY section of this memorandum, 
directly affecting the special road fund. Tangently 
related, there are bills from time to time that ask for an 
appropriation for a particular road, and sometimes 
these roads would qualify for special road funding. As 
a general rule, these bills do not pass. For example, 
201 1 Senate Bill No. 2200 requested a $2.1 million 
appropriation for the Cattail Bay road improvement 
project. This bill failed to pass the Senate. Also, 
tangently related is a report from the Parks and 
Recreation Department to the Legislative 
Management's interim Natural Resources Committee 
during the 2009-10 interim on the mandated study of 
linking and improving public sites along the Sibley and 
Sully Historic Trails. Although the study had more to 
do with the purchase of battle site property, access to 
these battle sites through roads would be necessary. 

STATUTORY H ISTORY 
The special road fund and related committee were 

originally created by the Legislative Assembly in 1 989. 
Under the original legislation, the fund was created 
with 1 00 percent of the interest earned on the highway 
fund. The related committee was the Special Road 
Advisory Committee. As such, the highway 
commissioner, now named the director of the 
Department of Transportation, had sole discretion 
regarding funding projects. 

In 1 997 the Legislative Assembly provided that 
beginning July 1 ,  1 997, the interest income earned on 
the highway fund would be retained in the highway 
fund and that after J u ne 30, 1 999, the statutory 
provisions relating to the special road fund and 
Special Road Advisory Committee would be repealed. 
However, in 1 999 the Legislative Assembly 
reestablished the committee and the fund. The 
committee was no longer advisory and was named 
the Special Road Committee. The p ercentage of 
interest from the state h i ghway fund to be placed in 
the special road fund was set at 40 percent. The 
Legislative Assembly amended the provisions relating 
to the special road fund i n  2009 House Bill No. 1 51 4. 
This bill made two major c hanges. The bill increased 
the percentage of income derived from the interest on 
the state highway fund from 40 percent to 80 percent. 
The bill allowed for holdover authority for unobligated 
funds for two bienniums. Previously, any money not 
obligated by the end of the biennium was required to 
revert to the state highway fund. 

Pursuant to North Dakota Century Code Section 
24-02-37.2, the Special Road Committee consists of a 
member of the Senate (currently Senator Gary A. Lee) 
and a member of the House (currently Representative 
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Dan Ruby)--appointed by the chairman of the 
Legislative M anagement, the director of the Game 
and Fish Department, the director of the Parks and 
Recreation Department, and the director of the 
Department of Transportation who is chairman. The 
S pecial Road Committee may use the money in the 
fund,  within the limits of legislative appropriations, for 
constructing and maintaining access roads to, and 
roads within ,  recreational, tourist, and historical areas. 
The committee may re.quire a political subdivision or 
state agency receiving funds for a project to contribute 
to the cost of the project. Any obligated money in the 
fund at the e n d  of each biennium must be held for an 
additional two years after which the funds revert to the 
highway fund.  

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
GUIDELINES 

In addition to the statutory provisions, the 
Department of Transportation has promulgated 
special road fu nd project g uidelines. These guidelines 
provide that the participation by the department is 
l imited to 60 percent of the construction cost, except 
within state-owned recreational, tourist, and historical 
areas, up to 1 00 percent of the construction costs may 
be available at the discretion of the Special Road 
Committee. The maximum financial participation is 
l imited to $250 ,000. The participant is responsible for 
al l  engineering costs, acquisition of right of way, and 
40 percent of the construction costs, except for up to 
1 DO percent if state-owned. The routine maintenance 
of the improvement is the responsibility of the 
participant. The participant is a city or county 
government o r  state agency. Projects are selected o n  
a competitive basis. The application requ ires the 
following i nformation: 

1 .  Description of the project and why the 
i mprovement is needed. 

Year 
Entity Project Awarded 

Barnes County and Clausen Springs - Access 2000 
Barnes County Park road 2.5 miles asphalt 
District patching seven chip seal 

Dunn County Mel's Marina - Access road 2000 

Emmons County Lawrence Welk birthplace - 2000 
Access road 2.5 miles 
grading and gravel 

Grafton Heritage Village - Access 2000 
road 

LaMoure County Lake LaMoure recreation 2000 
area - Asphalt surfacing 

Mcintosh County Doyle Memorial State Park 2000 
and Lake Hoskins - 6.8 miles 
seal coat 

Mclean County/ Fort Mandan - Access road 2000 
Lewis and Clark Fort reconstruction 
Mandan Foundation 

Mountrail County White Earth Bay - Access 2000 
road grading 

2 September 201 1 

2. Estimate of the traffic volume. 
3. Type of improvement that is planned. 
4. Estimate of cost. 
5. Who is providing the local match. 
6. Map showing the location of the project. 

One additional requirement in the past was, 
depending upon the proposed project's location, the 
appl ication must be sponsored by either a county, a 
city with a population of more than 5,000, or a state 
agency. 

FUND ADMINISTRATION 
The special road fund program is a yearly program. 

The following is a general timeline of the program: 
• September - Solicitation of applications begin.  
• Mid-December - Applications are due. 
• March or April - The Special Road Committee 

meets and selects projects. 
• April - Applicants are notified of the results. 
The amount funded for the year is determined by 

projections as to interest for that year. The amount is 
based on a projection of the income derived from the 
special road fund, of which 80 percent is used by the 
fund. For example, 80 percent of the highway fund's 
interest income is projected to be $ 1 5,000 per month 
for 201 1 .  This is based on an interest rate of 
2 percent. The amount available in the fund before 
201 1  interest income is $1 54,956.69. The total 
amount that is available for award in 201 1 is 
$334,956.69. 

Because of the low interest rate, projects were not 
awarded from 2004 to 2006. The funds earned in 
those years were used to fund previously awarded 
projects and to build a balance of funds for future 
awards. In 2007 awarding of funds from the special 
road fund recommenced. The following is i nformation 
on awards to entities for projects. The first table is of 
all projects funded since the re-inception of the special 
road fund in 1 999: 

Amount 
Amount Amount To Be Projects Project 
Awarded Reimbursed Reimbursed Withdrawn Status 

$14,400 $14,400.00 Complete 

76,200 58,029.43 Complete 

77,000 67,771 .50 Complete 

6,900 6,900.00 Complete 

45,500 45,500.00 Complete 

33,900 33,542.53 Complete 

7,500 7,500.00 Complete 

43,700 $43,700.00 
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Amount 
Year Amount Amount To Be Projects Project 

Entity Project Awarded Awarded Reimbursed Reimbursed Withdrawn Status 
Stutsman County Jamestown Reservoir and 2000 32,300 27,609.46 Complete 

Pipestem Lake - Access 
roads 

Sames County - Public golf course - Access 2001 78,900 77,090.76 Complete 
Valley City road from the Kathryn Road 

Interchange 

Dunn County Mel's Marina - Access road 2001 1 00,000 90,614.92 Complete 
Foster County Tri-county recreation project 2001 30,000 28,008.26 Complete 

in Carrington - Access road 

Mcintosh County Dry Lake and Coldwater 2001 28,000 8,405.40 Complete 
Lake - Access roads 

Parks and Recreation Turtle River State Park - 2001 200,000 200,000.00 Complete 
Department Bridge on access road 

Ward County County Road 22 - Access 2001 60,000 60,000.00 
road to Nelson Lake and 
Carlson Lake 

Williams County Trenton Indian Service Area - 2001 60,000 60,000.00 Complete 
Access road to Trenton Lake 

Williams County Little Beaver Bay - Access 2001 82,000 82,000.00 Complete 
road to new boat ramp 

Williams County Williston frontage road to 2001 45,000 36,264.86 Complete 
museum, park, campground, 
and golf course 

Emmons County Langeliers Bay Road - 2002 95,700 95,700.00 Complete 
Asphalt surfacing 

LaMoure County LaMoure County Memorial 2002 17,300 7,1 05.79 Complete 
Park 

McKenzie County Tobacco Garden Bay 2002 39,900 39,900.00 Complete 
recreation area 

McLean County/ Lake Audubon Wildlife 2002 60,000 60,000.00 Complete 
Game and Fish Management Area 
Department 

Mercer County/State Fort Clark Historic Site - 2002 75,000 66,1 97.39 Complete 
Historical Society Access road 

Ward County Old Settlers Park 2002 21 ,000 1 5,049.31 Complete 
Williams County Spring Lake Park - Park road 2002 20,400 9,871 .00 Complete 

repair 

Bottineau County Butte St. Paul - Access road 2003 1 6,800 1 5,053.56 Complete 
reshaping and gravel 

Burleigh County Double Ditch recreation 2003 1 5,000 1 5,000.00 Complete 
area - Access road paving 

Foster County Lake Juanita Park - Access 2003 21 ,000 21 ,000.00 Complete 
road paving 

Hettinger County/ Indian Creek Wildlife 2003 30,000 30,000.00 Complete 
Game -and Fish Management Area - Access 
Department road 

LaMoure County Lake LaMoure recreation 2003 7,800 7,800.00 Complete 
area - Seal coat 

Ransom County Sheyenne River National 2003 1 3,500 1 2,51 0.06 Complete 
Scenic Byway - Asphalt 
pullouts 

Ransom County Fort Ransom - Community 2003 24,000 24,000.00 
park. access road 

Stark County Enchanted Highway - Geese 2003 6,000 6,000.00 Complete 
in flight access road 

Bottineau County Mystical Horizons - Access 2007 47,000 30,061 .77 Complete 
road paving 

Bowman County Bowman-Haley Dam - 2007 22,000 22,000.00 Complete 
Access road gravel and chip 
seal 

Grafton Leistikow Park - Asphalt 2007 28,000 28,000.00 Complete 
overlay of park road 

International Peace Parking lots seal coat 2007 30,000 72,343.40 Complete 
Garden 
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Amount 
Year Amount Amount To Be Projects Project 

Entity Project Awarded Awarded Reimbursed Reimbursed Withdrawn Status 
LaMoure County Lake LaMoure - Access 2007 1 1 1 ,513 52,255.68 Complete 

roads 

Mercer County Hazen Bay - Walleye Road 2007 1 38,000 138,000.00 Complete 
reconstruction 

Mountrail County Van Hook - Access road 2007 1 95,000 1 95,000.00 Complete 
paving 

Parks and Recreation Beaver Lake State Park - 2007 67,221 57,653.23 Complete 
Department Access road seal coat 

Parks and Recreation Lake Sakakawea State 2007 200,000 1 79,370.50 Complete 
Department Park - Access road seal coat 

Ransom County Dead Colt Creek recreation 2007 1 07,580 1 07,580.00 Complete 
area - Paving roads 

Rolette County Lake Upsilon - Access road 2007 250,000 250,000.00 Complete 
reconstruction 

Williams County Little Beaver Bay - Access 2007 1 36,000 1 36,000.00 
road from ND 1 804 Phase 1 
reconstruction 

Bottineau County Mystical Horizons - Seal coat 2008 1 3,616 8,91 5.84 Complete 
of access road 

Bowman County Gascoyne Lake - Reshape 2008 7,200 5,043.45 Complete 
and gravel access road 

Dunn County McKenzie Bay - Regrade 2008 1 82,141 1 82,141 .00 Complete 
access road 

Fargo Red River Zoo - Access road 2008 70,000 70,000.00 
reconstruction 

Harvey Schroeder Park - 2008 1 34,700 1 34,700.00 
Resurfacing of park road 

Parks and Recreation Grahams Island State Park - 2008 1 17,000 1 1 7,000.00 Complete 
Department Seal coat of park roads 

Renville County Mouse River Park - Pave 2008 250,000 1 97,291 .90 1 0,000.00 
access road from ND 5 

Stutsman County Jamestown Reservoir and 2008 250,000 1 92,690.53 
Pipestem Lake - Access 
roads overlay and seal coat 

Williams County Little Beaver Bay - Access 2008 93,000 93,000.00 
road from ND 1 804 Phase 2 
reconstruction 

Grand Forks County Larimore Dam - Asphalt 2009 1 20,000 1 20,000.00 Complete 
overlay of park road 

Langdon 1 51h Avenue - Reconstruction 2009 250,000 250,000.00 
of road to recreation area 

Williams County Williston Railroad Park - 2009 1 85,000 1 77,801 .02 8,634.86 
Road construction 

Emmons County Cattail Bay - Access road 201 0  and 200,000 200,000.00 
reconstruction 201 1 

Kidder County Lake Isabel Park - Access 2010 1 1 ,850 7,�9.96 
road gravel 

Mcintosh County Doyle Memorial State Park - 2010 1 70,550 170,550.00 
Overlay access road 

Dunn County McKenzie Bay - Seal coat of 201 1 50,000 50,000.00 
access road 

LaMoure County Lake LaMoure - Seal coat of 201 1 8,610 8,61 0.00 
access road 

Mercer County Beulah Bay - Asphalt overlay 201 1  200,000 200,000.00 
of bay area roads 

Total $5,1 30,681 $3,521 ,202.51 $990,794.86 $332,400.00 

Special road fund balance as of June 30, 201 1 $921 '1 96.04 

Less amount to be reimbursed (990,794.86) 

Projected earnings through December 31 , 201 1  90,000 
(estimated at $1 5,000 per month) 

Amount available for award $20,401 . 1 8  
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In addition, the following is the scoring of the projects for 201 0-1 1 and the amount requested and awarded. 
The projects that were not awarded funds and scores are also included. 

Special Road Fund - Year 201 1-12 Projects 
Game Parks and 

and Fish Recreation Department of 
Project D�artment Department Senate House Transportation Total Requested1 Awarded 

Beulah Bay - Asphalt overlay 8 6 9 9 10  42 $250,000 $200,000 
of bay area roads 

Lake LaMoure - Seal coat of 6 1 0  7 1 0  7 40 8,61 0 8,610 
access road 
Cattail Bay - Grading, 9 6 8 4 8 35 1 50,000 1 00,000 
graveling, and paving access 
road from ND 1 804 

McKenzie Bay Marina - Seal 1 0  8 0 8 9 35 77,245 50,000 
coat of access road 

Harmon Lake - Paving access 6 1 10  3 5 25 250,000 
road 

Missouri-Yellowstone 6 7 1 5 6 25 1 50,000 
Confluence - Access roads hot 
bituminous overlay 

Lake Metigoshe - Seal coat of 3 3 5 7 3 21 68,400 
some lake area roads 

Dunn Center to Little Missouri 4 4 3 6 2 1 9  250,000 
Bay - Access road asphalt 
overlay 
Roosevelt Park - Repair of 2 2 6 1 4 1 5  83,593 
park roadways 

Minnewaukan - Access road to 1 8 2 0 1 1 2  21 9,000 
school and athletic fields 

Lavergne Avenue - Access 0 0 4 2 0 6 73,41 0  
road to school and athletic 
fields 

Total 55 55 55 55 55 275 $ 1 , 580,258 $358,610 
1The maximum award per project is $250,000. 

The following is a list by year of projects not funded: 

2007-08 
Entity Project 

Grand Forks Lincoln Park - Lincoln Drive Loop road - Asphalt overlay 

Valley City Rosebud Interpretive Center - Parking lot asphalt overlay 

Williams County Lund's Landing -Access road and parking lots asphalt overlay 

Minot Park district - Baseball complex/regional park - New construction - Seventh Avenue SW -
Five parking lots and one turnaround 

2008-09 
Entity Project 

Grand Forks County Larimore Dam - Asphalt overlay of park roads 
Washburn Riverside Park - Paving of park roads 
Mercer County Mercer County - Hazen Bay 
Williston Railroad Park 

2009-10 
Entity Project 

Williams County Paradise Point - Paving of access road to golf course 
Grafton Lavergne Avenue - Construction of access road to recreational facilities and high school 

2010-1 1 
Entity Project 

Kidder County Lake Isabel access road - Reshape and gravel 
Emmons County Cattail Bay - Reconstruction and paving of access road 
Mcintosh County Doyle Memorial State Park - Asphalt overlay 
Parks and Recreation Department Turtle River State Park - Asphalt overlay on entrance road and seal coat 
Barnes County Sibley - Repair asphalt roadway and seal coat 
Bottineau County Lake Metigoshe - Seal coat of access roads to cabin sites 
Mountrail County Parshall Bay road - Microsurfacing (repair of roadway surface) 
Morton County Harmon Lake - Asphalt paving of access road 
McLean County Brush Lake Pavilion road - Microsurfacing (repair of roadway surface) 
State Historical Society Standing Rock Historic Site - Repair access road from NO 46 
Williams County Fort Buford - Asphalt overlay of access road 
Grafton Lavergne Avenue - Construction of curb and gutter street 
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SUGGESTED STUDY APPROACH 
The suggested study approach is to follow the 

expectations of the proponents of the study. The 
committee may desire to receive testimony from these 
proponents to focus the study. Proponents included 
members from the Friends of Lake Sakakawea, resort 
and club owners on Lake Sakakawea, members of 
Voices of Lake Oahe, the publisher of Dakota Country 
magazine, and the Parks and Recreation Department 
with letters of support from the city of Walhalla, Valley 
City Visitors Bureau, and the Sheyenne River Valley 
National Scenic Byway Association. 

The legislative history does not reveal any 
opponents. However, if funding is being used for 
access roads through unique funding, other roads are 
not receiving that funding or are not being considered 
in the prioritization. The state, cities, and townships 
may fund access roads if there were not a special 
road fund, but those access roads would compete 
with other roads in the prioritization process. Certain 
political subdivisions without access roads may not 
want the money spent on access roads, and certain 
political subdivisions with access roads may desire 
the funding for all roads with the local d iscretion to 
spend on access roads. 

ATTACH : 1  

6 September 201 1 
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F R I E N D S  O F  
LAKE SAKAKAWEA 

P.O. Box 309 I Garrison, North Dakota I 58540 I friends@ lakesakakawea.com ! www. lakesakakawea.com 

Senate Transportation Committee 
SB 222 1 
Jan. 3 1 , 20 1 3  

Good morning, I am Bill  Butcher representing the Friends of Lake Sakakawea, an organization representing 
boaters, fishermen, cabin owners, sailors, businesses, communities and everyone who appreciates this 
resource. I am here to ask for your support of SB 222 1 .  

I f  you remember nothing else about this organization, you'll realize that we are tenacious. We were here in 

2009 to ask for changes to the special roads fund formula so more dollars would be available to 

recreational, tourist and historic road projects. The bill passed but unfortunately in the end it didn't amount 

to a whole lot of money, and did not even begin to address the need. During the 2009 session we also 

pursued a direct appropriation to the special roads fund of $30 Million. This  was amended to $ 1 5  m il lion 

and passed in the House; but did not pass in the Senate. Again the funding needs go unmet. 

We were back in the 201 1 Legislative Session requesting a study of recreational, tourism and historical 

roads in the state and to develop priorities and options for improving these roads. A house concurrent 

resolution passed unanimously in both the House and Senate and was assigned to the Interim Transportation 

Committee. 

But studying it isn't enough. Today we're in much worse condition than we were four years ago, and it is not 

going to be getting better anytime soon unless action is taken. While we're spending millions to entice 

visitors to our state, our roads are atrocious. Other speakers today will talk about the conditions that our 

residents and tourists endure. 

Several state agencies and the Interim Transportation Committee members encouraged us to seek statewide 

funding in the budget. Although the governor's recommended budget called for $ 1 42 million in 

undesignated road funds for oil producing counties and $ 1 00 million for non-oi l  producing counties, SB 

222 1 specifically addresses the needs statewide to make improvements to roadways to recreational areas. 

This is a statewide initiative and we appreciate any help you can give to the residents of this great state to 

make our roadways worthy of the people and places along these roadways. Please give SB 2221 a 

unanimous "DO PASS." 



Senate Transportation Committee 
Jan. 3 1 , 20 1 3  
Testimony from Mountrail County on SB222 1 

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee, 

I'm unable to attend the hearing on SB222 1 today, but I would like to offer some insight into the bill. I, 
as a former county commissioner, could not deliver this in person but I discussed the bill with two of 
the current Mountrail County Commissioners and they are fully supportive of the effort to grant more 
funding statewide for recreational roads. 

Current county commissioners Greg Bosch.ee and David Hynek deal with a lot of issues that I never 
had to worry about. When I was on the commissioner we were looking at ways to make Mountrail 
County more enticing to businesses and residents. Now they're more concerned with keeping up with 
the services for the influx of new residents and visitors. 

When those new residents, current residents and visitors come to the state, they want to enj oy its 
amenities when they have some time off. They want to purchase a fishing or a hunting license and head 
to the lake. Or they want to take their families to visit a historic fort or a park. 

They need and deserve to have good roads to make those travels. And if we build it they will come and 
enjoy. Since the road to Parshall Bay and Van Hook Bay were paved, traffic counts surged. The same 
could be true for our hidden gems statewide. 

Please give SB2221 a unanimous "do pass." 

Clarence Weltz 
PO Box 505 Parshall/ Van Hook Bay 
701 -898-3377 



Testimony in support of Senate Bi l l  2221 

January 31, 2013 

Randy H atze nbuhler 

Preside nt, TRM F 

Chairm a n  Oehlke and members of the Senate Transportation Committee: 

My name is Randy Hatzenbuher , President of the Theodore Roosevelt Medora Foundation and I a m  

here t o  testify for SB 2221. I ask for your support on SB 2221 which would provide needed funds for 

road i m p rovement on scenic byways and recreation areas in North Dakota. 

These funds wi l l  be of significant assistance to tourism entities across North Dakota. They will have great 

i mpact on people travel ing through the state as wel l  as those who choose North Dakota for their 

vacation destination. 

One of the more recognizable roads in North Dakota is the road just outside of M edora which winds past 

the entry to the Chateau de Mores H istoric Site and leads to the M edora M usical  Amphitheatre and 

Pitchfork Fondue. This road is 20 years old and in  need of repa ir. Passage of SB 2221 would provide the 

opportunity to a pply for funds for this road repair. 

Tha n k  you for your  consideration. I would be hap py to answer any questions. 

Respectful ly, 

Randy Hatzenbuhler, President 

Theodore Roosevelt M edora Foundation 



My n a m e  is Tom Jochim a n d  I a m  the Chairman of Voices for La ke Oahe which is 

l ocated in  southern E m m ons County. I a m  here today to express o u r  su p p ort of 

Senate Bi l l  No. 2221. 

The current county and township fun ding is inadequate and very stressed due to 

oth e r � p rojects and needs in the a rea which l imits the l ocal  governments' 

a bi l ity to make the necessary investment to improve existing recreationa l a ccess 

road ways. 

�tl�s-s- roadways to recreational, tourist, a n d  historica l s ites rep resent a 

l oca l a n d  statewide va l u e, a s  wel l  as a significant opportunity. I mp rovem ents wi l l  

lead tO increased USe resulting i n  added Va lue a nd income to the loca l and State fOV-ef fYt'l.tlf. 
e es P<""T#i;ps. 

With the �� population increases in  this state, related to the expa n ding 

e n e rgy industry and overa l l  economic growth, the resu lt is a n  i ncreasing d e m a n d  

for recreationa l  opportun ities a nd the need for u pgrades, i mp rovem e nts a n d  

construction of recreationa l  access roadways. 

The b e nefits re lated to this b i l l  could be n u merous. Safety of travelers, a d d e d  

tou rism do l lars, expanded economic opportun ities t o  the state a nd county 

governments, a nd less wea r  and tea r  on vehicles, b oats and RV's, a re just a few of 

those benefits . 

Catta i l  Bay Recreation Area is located on the Oahe Reservoir a p p roxim ately 70 
m i les south of Bismarck a n d  5.25 mi les west of H ighway 1804. This a rea c la ims to 

have some of the finest h u nting, fishing a n d  cam ping in  North Dakota a nd is a 

d estination for year-round recreation a l  activities. 

Cu rrently, the road is in very poor condition, which unfortunately, leaves a 

negative impression of o u r  a rea to fel low N o rth Dakotans and o ut-of-state 

visitors. A paved access road to Cattai l  Bay wou ld attract a popu l ation that 

cu rrently wil l  not use the gravel road, specifica l ly motorcycle a n d  snowmo bi le 

enthusiasts. I m proving a ccess to this p o p u l a r  a rea wil l  resu lt in  i ncreased use a nd 

eco n o m ic growth resulting i n  a positive return on the in�tr� investment. 



0 /�The last 1 . 25 m i les of the road to Cattai l  Bay was recently widened and bui lt u p  i n  

preparation for aspha lt. Voices for La ke O a h e  was a m ajor p layer in  that p roject 

by contributing some of the fun d i ng along with heading a fund ra ising campaign 

to com plete the p roject. That is h ow importa nt, we a s  a n  organ ization, fee l  th is 

road is to o u r  com m u nity, Lake Oahe AJS:s;:a:ait, and recreation a s  a whole. 

Tha n k  you for you r  time today. 



Good Morning . . .  Mr. Chairman and members of the committee. 
�o:J fl 

My name is Bill Mitzel. I publish Dakota Country magazine, a monthly hunting, 
fishing and conservation magazine out of Bismarck. We have readers in all 50 
states and Canada. 

In my many decades of promoting the wise use of our natural resources, it's 
always been a challenge to make people aware of our wonderful  resources, but a 
much more difficult challenge to convince people of the need for conservation and 
enhancement of these resources. We are an agricultural state , which rightfully 
garners major attention. But when we realize that tourism spending was more 
than $3 billion in 20 1 1 , an increase of almost 24 percent since 2008, we can easily 
understand that the valuable outdoor heritage we have here in North Dakota is of 
paramount importance . · .. . •· 

In dealing with sportsmen and women for several decades, their major concerns 
not only involve where to hunt and fish, but how to get there. When Dakota 
Country was beginning in the state's outdoor world 33 years ago, people traveled 
in a variety of vehicles to get to their destinations. Boats were small by today's . 
standards, and campers w,ere uncommon. Today, the vehicle, boat and RV business 
is huge. Sales of these expensive toys have increased dramatically, and you can 't go 
anywhere without seeing people attached to these huge investments. 

As a result, sportsmen and women need good travel routes to get to their desired 
destinations, of which we have many. That said, it's easy to understand that with 
more and improved travel routes, people would make more use of our resources, 
which of course, will improve out economy. We would love to leave these people with 
a good impression and have them return. 

I 'll tell you why that's important. For many people in this country, in fact, for a 
huge majority of people i:q. this country, any contact with the outdoor world comes 
in the form of a backyard1 bird feeder. That's it . For most Americans to actually go 
camping or fishing or hiking is a rare commodity. They have no contact with the 
outdoor world at all. But: 1that isn't the case in North Dakota. We are an outdoor 
people. It's our culture . We talk about it all the time. Tell a friend about a fishing 
hotspot and he'll disappear faster than a pizza at a Weight Watcher's convention.  

There is a frequent national television commercial airing at the present time, in 
which an adult male, dre.ssed head-to-toe in fly fishing gear, looks at the camera 
and says, "Before COPD , I used to take my son on a fishing trip every year; " 

Wow. Once, every year? In North Dakota and the Midwest, it's not uncommon 
for thousands of people t6 fish and hunt up to 100 times a year. Thus, the need 
for good travel routes are vital and important. Such benefits will only increase the 
amount of outdoor activity in North Dakota, of which there is more than anyone 
could possible explore in a lifetime. 

People, when describing directions to a fishing or hunting hotspot, often conclude 
that there 's a certain amount of gravel miles involved. It's obvious important when 
people consider outdoor <;lestinations. Poor roads are a deterrent. 

I hope the committee will work with North Dakota's outdoor community to 
improve roads where we can.  Travel is a huge element in people 's plans when they 
decide where to spend W<:)ekends and vacations. And those statistics I mentioned 
earlier abou_t tourism pro:ve how important that component is to our way of life . 

Thank you . 

Bill Mitzel 
Bismarck 
(70 1) 255-303 1 



Transportation Committee Meeting 
Kelly Sorge, Indian Hills Resort, Garrison NO. 
In Support of SB2221 

Good morning. I'm Kelly Sorge, owner of Indian Hills Resort. If you haven't been 
there, it's a beautiful spot nestled in lush hills, offering fantastic fishing and rich 
experiences. 

That being said, first impressions are lasting and irreplaceable. I spend 
thousands of dollars and countless hours on advertising our beautiful oasis on the lake. 

We boast fantastic camping, lodging, newly constructed world class mountain bike trails 
and customer service beyond compare. 

Then when I finally have them coming, their f irst experience after traveling 
several hours or hundreds of miles is, a primitive country road full of washboards and 
loose rock. Imagine what is going on the camper or boat. That is the first impression I 
have to compete with as they battle with dusty new fishing rods, damaged trailers and 
cupboard goods sent flying. 

It seems a bit like false advertising. It can actually be quite embarrassing 
sometimes. 

The goal of any business is to grow and prosper. Another major hurdle for us is 
the delivery trucks. Some refuse to travel in to the resort and others have threatened to 
stop delivering. Land O'Lakes and Coca-Cola have never delivered, and if the Ice truck 
decides to stop traveling our 3 miles of washboards we really have a problem, as we 
are 30 miles from town. 

I realize that our location is not the only one at the end of roac;ls that need 
improving. I believe the people of N O  deserve a better experience and we all want to be 
proud of our state on the eyes of our out of state guests. 

Please give SB2221 a "do pass" so these rich resources can be enjoyed. 



Testimony on SB222 1 
Senate Transportation Committee 
Emmanuel Stroh 

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee, 

I am here to testify for improving the roads that lead to many recreational spots statewide. 

There are roads that are in dire need of improvements. One area I have used most is the 

McKenzie Bay area, which lies in Dunn County, and a good portion of the road to the area lies in 

McKenzie County. 

The McKenzie Bay Marine Club spent a lot of their own funds to develop and maintain the road 

for 50 plus years. This ia public use area that is open to the public for recreation with full public 

facilities and is the only public use area with full facilities in Dunn County. We have received funding 

over the years from ND DOT, Dunn County, McKenzie County and the Corps of Engineers but these 

funds have been very limited. 

Much of the roads funds Dunn arid McKenzie Counties have now are going to roads impacted 

by high oil traffic. This bill would allow a portion of the funding to come from the state and a portion 

from a partner like the county or the McKenzie Bay Marine Club. 

As you can imagine, our area has seen an enormous increase in traffic. In 2008 we had 

approximately 20,000 vehicles use the road to McKenzie Bay. As you can imagine, traffic counts are at 

least double that today. 

Passage of SB222 1 will help us improve roads statewide that need improvement. Thank you for 

your time and consideration. 



. 1 )  Bismarck Regional DUI Task Force 
2) Devils Lake Regional DUI Task Force 
3) Dickinson Regional DUI Task F orce 
4) Fargo Regional DUI Task Force 
5) Grand Forks Regional DUI Task Force 
6) Jamestown Regional DUI Task Force 
7) Minot Regional DUI Task Force 
8) Williston Regional DUI Task Force 



13.0662.02001 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Flakoll 

January 3 1 , 2013 

PROPOSED A MEN DMENTS TO SENATE B I LL NO. 2221 

Page 1 ,  line 20, after the period insert "To be eligible to receive a grant under this section, the 
county or township road project must be located within a county that levies a combined 
total of seven or more mil ls for county road and bridge, farm-to-market and federal aid 
road, and county road purposes." 

Renumber accordingly 



13.0662.02002 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Flakoll 

January 31 , 2013 

P ROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE B I LL NO. 2221 

Page 1 ,  l ine 20, after the period insert "The special road committee may distribute a maximum 
of $2, 500,000 of grants under this section for projects located within the boundaries of 
each department of transportation district in the state." 

Renumber accordingly 



Prepared by Legislative Intern Justin Hagel 
Senator Flakoll 

February 1 ,  20 1 3  

PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO SENATE BILL NO. 222 1 

Page 1 ,  line 20, after "section. " insert the following: 

SECTION 3. Section 24-02-37.2 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and 
reenacted as follows: 

24-02-37.2 Special road committee. 

1 .  The special road committee consists of one member of the senate and one member of the 
house ofrepresentatives legislator appointed by the chairman of the legislative 
management, the chairman of the senate and house of representatives transportation 
committees, the senate and house of representatives minority leaders, the director of the 
game and fish department, the director of the parks and recreation department, and the 
director of the department of transportation or their designees. The director of the 
department of transportation is chairman of the committee. The committee must meet at 
the call of the director to review requests for funding from the special road fund. The 
committee shall decide which project requests will receive funding. The director shall 
provide staff services to the committee. The members of the committee who are members 
of the legislative assembly are entitled to compensation from the department of 
transportation, from moneys appropriated from the special road fund, for attendance at 
committee meetings at the rate provided for members of the legislative assembly for 
attendance at interim committee meetings and are entitled to reimbursement for expenses 
incurred in attending the meetings in the amounts provided by law for other state 
officers. 

Renumber accordingly 
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S PECIAL ROAD FUND STUDY - BAC KG RO U N D  MEMORA N D U M  

House Concurrent Resolution No. 3032 (201 1 )  
(attached as an appendix) di rects the Legislative 
Management to study the needs of, economic values 
of, and methods to improve access roadways to 
recreational ,  tourist, and historical sites in North 
Dakota. Presently, access roads are funded through 
the special road fund. The resolution recogn izes that 
funding through the special road fund is inadequate to 
meet the needs of access roadways, and many of 
these roadways are in a significant state of disrepair 
or are in need of improvement. The resolution states 
that county and township funding is inadequate to 
meet the needs of access roadways. The resolution 
stresses that access roadways represent a value and 
provide an opportunity to increase income to local and 
state economies by increasing demand to visit the 
sites to which access roadways connect. The 
resolution recognizes that each access roadway 
varies in the condition, use, need, and value, and the 
appropriate manner in which to address the need of 
the access roadway depends on the facts surrounding 
each roadway. The resolution requires the study to 
focus on designated or named public or privately 
developed recreation areas, potential funding 
requirements through the special road fund or other 
>nn,rnr�r•ate funding method for the identified access 

improvements, and the abil ity of the local 
governmental entities to operate and maintain these 
improvements when completed. I n  short, the study is 
of the funding of roads and road maintenance for 
roads that access tourist destinations, especially 
recreational areas. 

LEGISLATIVE H ISTORY 
The minutes and testimony for House Concurrent 

Resolution No. 3032 reveal :  
• Many of the proponents for the study have 

interests in and around Lake Sakakawea or 
Lake Oahe. 

• The goal of proponents of the study is to 
expand the special road fund, perhaps by 
identifying new sources of revenues. 

• Funding is inadequate to meet current and 
future needs. 

• Roads through the Army Corps of Eng ineers' 
property create special needs for funding. 

• The study should identify needs, prioritize the 
needs, and fund the prioritized needs. The first 
step of the study should be to identify and 
prioritize access roadways based on needs and 
values of the site connected with the roadway. 
Next, determine the reasonable level of access 
before the existing and projected use and 
needs of each site. Final ly, determine if the 
improvement sign ificantly i ncreases the use of 
the s ite and justifies the investment. 

In short, the study is of money and priorities based 
on a cost and benefit analysis. 

There has not been any recent study or leg islation, 
besides the 2009 legislation mentioned later in the 
STATUTORY HISTORY section of this memorandum, 
di rectly affecting the special road fund. Tangently 
related , there are bills from time to time that ask for an 
appropriation for a particular road, and sometimes 
these roads would qualify for special road funding.  As 
a general rule, these bills do not pass. For example, 
201 1  Senate Bi l l  No. 2200 requested a $2. 1  mil l ion 
appropriation for the Cattai l  Bay road improvement 
project. This bi l l  fai led to pass the Senate. Also, 
tangently related is a report from the Parks and 
Recreation Department to the Legislative 
Management's interim Natural Resources Committee 
during the 2009-1 0 interim on the mandated study of 
l inking and improving public sites along the Sibley and 
Sul ly Historic Trails. Although the study had more to 
do with the purchase of battle site property, access to 
these battle sites through roads would be necessary. 

STATUTORY HISTORY 
The special road fund and related committee were 

originally created by the Legislative Assembly in 1 989. 
Under the original legislation, the fund was created 
with 1 00 percent of the interest earned on the highway 
fund. The related committee was the Special Road 
Advisory Committee. As such, the highway 
commissioner, now named the director of the 
Department of Transportation, had sole discretion 
regarding funding projects. 

In 1 997 the Leg islative Assembly provided that 
beginning July 1 ,  1 997, the interest income earned on 
the highway fund would be retained in the highway 
fund and that after June 30, 1 999, the statutory 
provisions relating to the special road fund and 
Special Road Advisory Committee would be repealed. 
However, in 1 999 the Legislative Assembly 
reestablished the committee and the fund. The 
committee was no longer advisory and was n amed 
the Special Road Committee. The percentage of 
interest from the state highway fund to be placed in 
the special road fund was set at 40 percent. The 
Legislative Assembly amended the provisions relating 
to the special road fund in 2009 House Bill No. 1 5 1 4. 
This bil l made two major changes. The bil l  increased 
the percentage of income derived from the interest on 
the state highway fund from 40 percent to 80 percent. 
The bill al lowed for holdover authority for unobl igated 
funds for two bienniums. Previously, any money not 
obligated by the end of the biennium was requ i red to 
revert to the state highway fund. 

Pursuant to North Dakota Century Code Section 
24-02-37.2, the Special Road Committee consists of a 
member of the Senate (currently Senator Gary A Lee) 
and a member of the House (currently Representative 
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Dan Ruby)--appointed by the chairman of the 
Leg islative Management, the d irector of the Game 
and Fish Department, the d irector of the Parks and 
Recreation Department, and the director of the 
Department of Transportation who is chairman. The 
Special Road Committee may use the money in the 
fund, within the l imits of legislative appropriations, for 
constructing and maintaining access roads to, and 
roads within ,  recreational, tourist, and historical areas. 
The committee may require a political subdivision or 
state agency receiving funds for a project to contribute 
to the cost of the project. Any obl igated money in the 
fund at the end of each biennium must be held for an 
additional two years after which the funds revert to the 
h ighway fund. 

DEPARTM ENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
GUIDELINES 

In addition to the statutory provisions, the 
Department of Transportation has promulgated 
special road fund project g uidelines. These guidelines 
provide that the participation by the department is 
l imited to 60 percent of the construction cost, except 
within state-owned recreational , tourist, and h istorical 
areas, up to 1 00 percent of the construction costs may 
be available at the discretion of the Special Road 
Committee. The maximum financial participation is 
l imited to $250,000. The participant is responsible for 
al l  engineering costs, acquisition of right of way, and 
40 percent of the construction costs, except for up to 
1 00 percent if state-owned. The routine maintenance 
of the improvement is the responsibil ity of the 
participant. The participant is a city or county 
government or state agency. P rojects are selected on 
a competitive basis. The application requires the 
following information : 

1 .  Description of the project and why the 
improvement is needed. 

Year 
Entity Project Awarded 

Barnes County and Clausen Springs - Access 2000 
Barnes County Park road 2.5 miles asphalt 
District patching seven chip seal 

Dunn County Mel's Marina - Access road 2000 

Emmons County Lawrence Welk birthplace - 2000 
Access road 2.5 miles 
grading and gravel 

Grafton Heritage Village - Access 2000 
road 

LaMoure County Lake LaMoure recreation 2000 
area - Asphalt surfacing 

Mcintosh County Doyle Memorial State Park 2000 
and Lake Hoskins - 6.8 miles 
seal coat 

Mclean County/ Fort Mandan - Access road 2000 
Lewis and Clark Fort reconstruction 
Mandan Foundation 

Mountrail County White Earth Bay - Access 2000 
road grading 

2 September 201 1 

2. Estimate of the traffic volume. 
3. Type of improvement that is planned. 
4. Estimate of cost. 
5. Who is providing the local match. 
6. Map showing the location of the project. 

One additional requirement in the past was, 
depending upon the proposed project's location , the 
appl ication must be sponsored by either a county, a 
city with a population of more than 5 ,000, or a state 
agency. 

FUND ADM IN ISTRATION 
The special road fund program is a yearly program. 

The following is a general timeline of the program: 
• September - Sol icitation of appl ications begin. 
• Mid-December - Appl ications are due. 
• March or April - The Special Road Committee 

meets and selects projects. 
• April - Applicants are notified of the results. 
The amount fu nded for the year is determined by 

projections as to interest for that year. The amount is 
based on a projection of the income derived from the 
special road fu nd, of which 80 percent is used by the 
fund. For example, 80 percent of the highway fund's 
interest income is projected to be $ 1 5,000 per month 
for 201 1 .  This is based on an interest rate of 
2 percent. The amount available in the fund before 
201 1 interest income is $ 1 54, 956.69. The total 
amount that is available for award in 201 1 is 
$334,956.69. 

Because of the low interest rate, projects were not 
awarded from 2004 to 2006. The funds earned in 
those years were used to fund previously awarded 
projects and to build a balance of funds for future 
awards. In 2007 award ing of funds from the special 
road fund recommenced. The following is information 
on awards to entities for projects. The first table is of 
all projects funded since the re-inception of the special 
road fund in 1 999: 

Amount 
Amount Amount To Be Projects Project 
Awarded Reimbursed Reimbursed Withdrawn Status 

$1 4,400 $1 4,400.00 Complete 

76,200 58,029.43 Complete 

77,000 67,771 .50 Complete 

6,900 6,900.00 Complete 

45,500 45,500.00 Complete 

33,900 33,542.53 Complete 

7,500 7,500.00 Complete 

43,700 $43,700.00 
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Amount 
Year Amount Amount To Be Projects Project 

Entity Protect Awarded Awarded Reimbursed Reimbursed Withdrawn Status 
Stutsman County Jamestown Reservoir and 2000 32,300 27,609.46 Complete 

Pipestem Lake - Access 
roads 

Barnes County - Public golf course - Access 2001 78,900 77,090.76 Complete 
Valley City road from the Kathryn Road 

interchange 

Dunn County Mel's Marina - Access road 2001 1 00,000 90,614.92 Complete 

Foster County Tri-county recreation project 2001 30,000 28,008.26 Complete 
in Carrington - Access road 

Mcintosh County Dry Lake and Coldwater 2001 28,000 8,405.40 Complete 
Lake - Access roads 

Parks and Recreation Turtle River State Park - 2001 200,000 200,000.00 Complete 
Department Bridge on access road 

Ward County County Road 22 - Access 2001 60,000 60,000.00 
road to Nelson Lake and 
Carlson Lake 

Williams County Trenton Indian Service Area - 2001 60,000 60,000.00 Complete 
Access road to Trenton Lake 

Williams County Little Beaver Bay - Access 2001 82,000 82,000.00 Complete 
road to new boat ramp 

Williams County Williston frontage road to 2001 45,000 36,264.86 Complete 
museum, park, campground, 
and golf course 

Emmons County Langeliers Bay Road - 2002 95,700 95,700.00 Complete 
Asphalt surfacing 

LaMoure County LaMoure County Memorial 2002 1 7,300 7,1 05.79 Complete 
Park 

McKenzie County Tobacco Garden Bay 2002 39,900 39,900.00 Complete 
recreation area 

Mclean County/ Lake Audubon Wildlife 2002 60,000 60,000.00 Complete 
Game and Fish Management Area 
Department 

Mercer County/State Fort Clark Historic Site - 2002 75,000 66,1 97.39 Complete 
Historical Society Access road 

Ward County Old Settlers Park 2002 21 ,000 1 5,049.31 Complete 

Williams County Spring Lake Park - Park road 2002 20,400 9,871 .00 Complete 
repair 

Bottineau County Butte St. Paul - Access road 2003 1 6,800 1 5,053.56 Complete 
reshaping and gravel 

Burleigh County Double Ditch recreation 2003 1 5,000 1 5,000.00 Complete 
area - Access road paving 

Foster County Lake Juanita Park - Access 2003 21 ,000 21 ,000.00 Complete 
road paving 

Hettinger County/ Indian Creek Wildlife 2003 30,000 30,000.00 Complete 
Game and Fish Management Area - Access 
Department road 

LaMoure County Lake LaMoure recreation 2003 7,800 7,800.00 Complete 
area - Seal coat 

Ransom County Sheyenne River National 2003 1 3,500 1 2,51 0.06 Complete 
Scenic Byway - Asphalt 
pullouts 

Ransom County Fort Ransom - Community 2003 24,000 24,000.00 
park access road 

Stark County Enchanted Highway - Geese 2003 6,000 6,000.00 Complete 
in flight access road 

Bottineau County Mystical Horizons - Access 2007 47,000 30,061 .77 Complete 
road paving 

Bowman County Bowman-Haley Dam - 2007 22,000 22,000.00 Complete 
Access road gravel and chip 
seal 

Grafton Leistikow Park - Asphalt 2007 28,000 28,000.00 Complete 
overlay of park road 

International Peace Parking lots seal coat 2007 30,000 72,343.40 Complete 
Garden 
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Amount 
Year Amount Amount To Be Projects Project 

Entity Prolect Awarded Awarded Reimbursed Reimbursed Withdrawn Status 

LaMoure County Lake LaMoure - Access 2007 1 1 1 ,5 13  52,255.68 Complete 
roads 

Mercer County Hazen Bay - Walleye Road 2007 1 38,000 1 38,000.00 Complete 
reconstruction 

Mountrail County Van Hook - Access road 2007 1 95,000 1 95,000.00 Complete 
paving 

Parks and Recreation Beaver Lake State Park - 2007 67,221 57,653.23 Complete 
Department Access road seal coat 

Parks and Recreation Lake Sakakawea State 2007 200,000 1 79,370.50 Complete 
Department Park - Access road seal coat 

Ransom County Dead Colt Creek recreation 2007 1 07,580 1 07,580.00 Complete 
area - Paving roads 

Rolette County Lake Upsilon - Access road 2007 250,000 250,000.00 Complete 
reconstruction 

Williams County Little Beaver Bay - Access 2007 1 36,000 1 36,000.00 
road from NO 1 804 Phase 1 
reconstruction 

Bottineau County Mystical Horizons - Seal coat 2008 1 3,616 8,91 5.84 Complete 
of access road 

Bowman County Gascoyne Lake - Reshape 2008 7,200 5,043.45 Complete 
and gravel access road 

Dunn County McKenzie Bay - Regrade 2008 1 82 , 141 1 82 , 141 .00 Complete 
access road 

Fargo Red River Zoo - Access road 2008 70,000 70,000.00 
reconstruction 

Harvey Schroeder Park - 2008 1 34,700 1 34,700.00 
Resurfacing of park road 

Parks and Recreation Grahams Island State Park - 2008 1 1 7,000 1 1 7,000.00 Complete 
Department Seal coat of park roads 

Renville County Mouse River Park - Pave 2008 250,000 1 97,291 .90 1 0,000.00 
access road from NO 5 

Stutsman County Jamestown Reservoir and 2008 250,000 1 92,690.53 
Pipestem Lake - Access 
roads overlay and seal coat 

Williams County Little Beaver Bay - Access 2008 93,000 93,000.00 
road from NO 1 804 Phase 2 
reconstruction 

Grand Forks County Larimore Dam - Asphalt 2009 1 20,000 1 20,000.00 Complete 
overlay of park road 

Langdon 1 5"' Avenue - Reconstruction 2009 250,000 250,000.00 
of road to recreation area 

Williams County Williston Railroad Park - 2009 1 85,000 1 77,80 1 .02 8,634.86 
Road construction 

Emmons County Cattail Bay - Access road 201 0 and 200,000 200,000.00 
reconstruction 201 1 

Kidder County Lake Isabel Park - Access 201 0 1 1 ,850 7,229.96 
road gravel 

Mcintosh County Doyle Memorial State Park - 201 0 1 70,550 1 70,550.00 
Overlay access road 

Dunn County McKenzie Bay - Seal coat of 201 1 50,000 50,000.00 
access road 

LaMoure County Lake La Moure - Seal coat of 201 1 8,61 0  8,61 0.00 
access road 

Mercer County Beulah Bay - Asphalt overlay 201 1 200,000 200,000.00 
of bay area roads 

Total $5, 1 30,681 $3,521 ,202.51 $990,794.86 $332,400.00 

Special road fund balance as of June 30, 201 1  $92 1 , 1 96.04 

Less amount to be reimbursed (990,794.86) 

Projected earnings through December 31 , 201 1 90,000 
(estimated at $1 5,000 per month) 

Amount available for award $20,40 1 . 1 8  
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In addition, the following is the scoring of the projects for 20 1 0-1 1 and the amount req uested and awarded. 
The projects that were not awarded funds and scores are also included. 

Special Road Fund 0 Year 201 1 °1 2  Projects 
Game Parks and 

and Fish Recreation Department of 
Project Department Department Senate House Transportation Total Requested1 Awarded 

Beulah Bay 0 Asphalt overlay 8 6 9 9 1 0  42 $250,000 $200,000 
of bay area roads 

Lake LaMoure - Seal coat of 6 10  7 1 0  7 40 8,610  8,610 
access road 

Cattail Bay - Grading, 9 6 8 4 8 35 1 50,000 1 00,000 
graveling, and paving access 
road from NO 1 804 

McKenzie Bay Marina - Seal 1 0  8 0 8 9 35 77,245 50,000 
coat of access road 

Harmon Lake - Paving access 6 1 1 0  3 5 25 250,000 
road 

Missouri-Yellowstone 6 7 1 5 6 25 1 50,000 
Confluence - Access roads hot 
bituminous overlay 

Lake Metigoshe - Seal coat of 3 3 5 7 3 21 68,400 
some lake area roads 

Dunn Center to Little Missouri 4 4 3 6 2 1 9  250,000 
Bay - Access road asphalt 
overlay 

Roosevelt Park - Repair of 2 2 6 1 4 1 5  83,593 
park roadways 

Minnewaukan - Access road to 1 8 2 0 1 1 2  219 ,000 
school and athletic fields 

Lavergne Avenue - Access 0 0 4 2 0 6 73,4 1 0  
road t o  school and athletic 
fields 

Total 55 55 55 55 55 275 $1 ,580,258 $358,610 
1The maximum award per project is $250,000. 

The following is a list by year of projects not funded: 

2007-08 
Entity Project 

Grand Forks Lincoln Park - Lincoln Drive Loop road - Asphalt overlay 

Valley City Rosebud Interpretive Center - Parking lot asphalt overlay 

Williams County Lund's Landing - Access road and parking lots asphalt overlay 

Minot Park district - Baseball complex/regional park - New construction - Seventh Avenue SW -
Five parking lots and one turnaround 

2008-09 
Entity Project 

Grand Forks County Larimore Dam - Asphalt overlay of park roads 
Wash bum Riverside Park - Paving of park roads 
Mercer County Mercer County - Hazen Bay 
Williston Railroad Park 

2009-1 0 
Entity Project 

Williams County Paradise Point - Paving of access road to golf course 
Grafton Lavergne Avenue - Construction of access road to recreational facilities and high school 

201 0-1 1 
Entity Project 

Kidder County Lake Isabel access road - Reshape and gravel 
Emmons County Cattail Bay - Reconstruction and paving of access road 
Mcintosh County Doyle Memorial State Park - Asphalt overlay 
Parks and Recreation Department Turtle River State Park - Asphalt overlay on entrance road and seal coat 
Sames County Sibley - Repair asphalt roadway and seal coat 
Bottineau County Lake Metigoshe - Seal coat of access roads to cabin sites 
Mountrail County Parshall Bay road - Microsurfacing (repair of roadway surface) 
Morton County Harmon Lake - Asphalt paving of access road 
Mclean County Brush Lake Pavilion road - Microsurfacing (repair of roadway surface) 
State Historical Society Standing Rock Historic Site - Repair access road from NO 46 
Williams County Fort Buford - Asphalt overlay of access road 
Grafton Lavergne Avenue - Construction of curb and gutter street 
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SUGGESTED STU DY APPROACH 
The suggested study approach is to follow the 

expectations of the proponents of the study. The 
committee may desire to receive testimony from these 
proponents to focus the study. Proponents included 
members from the Friends of Lake Sakakawea, resort 
and club owners on Lake Sakakawea, members of 
Voices of Lake Oahe, the publisher of Dakota Country 
magazine, and the Parks and Recreation Department 
with letters of support from the city of Walhalla, Valley 
City Visitors Bureau, and the Sheyenne River Valley 
National Scenic Byway Association. 

The legislative history does not reveal any 
opponents. However, if funding is being used for 
access roads through unique funding, other roads are 
not receiving that funding or are not being considered 
in the prioritization. The state, cities, and townships 
may fund access roads if there were not a special 
road fund, but those access roads would compete 
with other roads in the prioritization process. Certain 
political subdivisions without access roads may not 
want the money spent on access roads, and certain 
political subdivisions with access roads may desire 
the funding for all roads with the local d iscretion to 
spend on access roads. 

ATTACH : 1  

6 September 201 1 
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Chairma n Ru by a n d  members of the House Tra nsportation Com mittee, for the 

record my n a me is Robert E rbele, Senator from District 28.  

SB2221 is a bi l l  to a d d ress the n eed to u pdate o u r  roads lead ing to recreational  

access and scenic byway and backway roads.  The b i l l  req uests that 20 m i l l ion 

do l lars be appropriated from the Strategic I nvestment a n d  I m p rovement F u n d .  

ff l  

A l ittle  h i story on the fu nd . The fu nd was estab l ished last sess i o n  by H B  1451 that 

instructed the State Treasure r  to close out the lands a n d  m i n e ra l s  trust fun d  a n d  

tra nsfer a ny rem a i n ing unob l igated bala nce to the strategic investment a n d  

i m p rovements fun d  The b i l l  stated it i s  the i ntent of t h e  Legis lative Assem bly that 

the fu nd be used for one-time expenditu res relating to i mproving state 

i nfrastructu re or i n itiatives to i m p rove the efficiency a n d  effectiveness of state 

government.  H B1451 created a new chapter to the Centu ry Cod e  to p rovide for 

the a l locatio n  of the state's s h a re of o i l  and gas tax reven ues d esignated for 

deposit to the fo l lowing fu nds  . 

. The fi rst $200 mi l l ion  is deposited i n  the genera l  fu n d  

.The next $341,790,000 i s  d eposited i n  the property tax rel ief s u sta i nabi l ity fu n d  

.The next $100,000 m i l l ion i s  d eposited i n  the general  fu n d  

. The next $ 100,000 m i l l ion i s  deposited in  the strategic investment a n d  

i m p rovement fu nd 

.The next $22 mi l l ion  is deposited in  the state d isaster re l ief fu nd,  

a nd a ny add it ional  reven u e  is d e posited in  the strategic investment and 

i m p rovements fun d .  

There i s  a hea lthy ba lance i n  t h e  fund today, but whethe r  or  n ot w e  choose that 

fu nd or  if the App ro priations com mittee deems there is a fu n d  that may fit these 

p rojects better, it i s  i mportant to move forward whi le we have the resou rces to 

enha nce the access to some ou r states' specia l  sites. 

Each session legislators have req uests from thei r constituents for s pecial  p rojects 

with i n  the i r  d istricts, a nd iso lated sta n d  a lone b i l ls that o n ly serve one district as a 

genera l  ru le do n ot receive a favorable outcome. SB2221 is des igned to put a 

pool of money together  to a d d ress road improvements to sce n ic a reas and 



recreationa l  access on a statewide basis. The re a re i n d ivid u a ls h e re today from 

d ifferent loca les i n  N o rth Da kota to speak to the benefits of p rovi d i ng fu nds for 

those a reas.  

I would l ike to give j u st a l ittle  more backgro u n d  on how p rojects of this type a re 

cu rrently fu nded . These type of projects a re fu nded from the s pecia l roads fu nd 

with i n  the depart m e nt of tra nsportation•s budget. That pool  receives its money 

from the i nterest on the fu n d s  we receive from the Fede ra l  Hi way d istribution 

fu n d .  As you know i nterest rates are very low so the speci a l  roads fun d  has been 

struggling, p lus  it is  l i m ited to 250,000 dol lars per project, it fu n ctions as  a 

su pplement to loca l s u b d ivision efforts. 

S B2221 d i rects the m oney to be put into the specia l  road fu n d  as means  to assist 

the DOT i n  the d i s b u rsements of the fu nds, however it does rem ove the dol lar  

l i m itations a nd has permissive language that depe n di ng on the p roject they may 

req u i re that u p  to 20% be fu nded from the local subdivisio n . 

There a re th ree cha rges that the people of N o rth Da kota have given this  

legislatu re i n  rega rds to our surplus.  1. I m p rove o u r  i nfrastructu re, this b i l l  does 

that. 2. Send some m oney back to the people, this b i l l  w i l l  b ri n g  m oney and 

economic d evelopment to those com m u nities receiving the fu n d s. 3 .  P roperty tax 

re l ief, this b i l l  wi l l  p rovide rel ief to those comm u n ities that have struggled for 

yea rs to raise the reven u es for these specia l  p rojects . 

I ask for you r  favora ble  cons ideration of this S B221. 



F R I E N D S  O F  
LAKE SAKAKAWEA 

P.O. Box 309 Garrison,  North Dakota 58540 friends@ lakesakakawea.com www.lakesakakawea.com 

House Transportation Committee - SB 222 1 
March 2 1 ,  20 1 3  

I am Bill Butcher representing the Friends of Lake Sakakawea, an organization representing boaters, 
fishermen, cabin owners, sailors, businesses, communities and everyone who appreciates the 
recreational resources on our lake and statewide. I am here to ask for your support of SB 222 1 .  

The Friends were here in 2009 to ask for a direct appropriation to the special roads fund of $30 Million. 

This was amended to $ 1 5  million and passed in the House; but did not pass in the Senate. Hence the 

needed funding went unmet. 

We were back in the 20 1 1  Legislative Session requesting a study of recreational, tourism and historical 

roads in the state and to develop priorities and options for improving these roads. A house concurrent 

resolution passed unanimously in both the House and Senate and was assigned to the Interim 

Transportation Committee and the matter was, indeed, studied. 

But studying it isn't enough. Today these roads are in much worse condition than they were four years 

ago, and it is not going to be getting better anytime soon unless action is taken. While we're spending 

millions to entice visitors to our state, our roads are atrocious. SB 222 1 specifically addresses the needs 

statewide to make improvements to roadways to recreational areas. 

The bill before you originally called for $40 million but was reduced by the Senate to $20 million. It 

also calls for those monies to be distributed equally between the DOT's eight districts in the state. DOT 

estimates the cost of paving a road at about $ 1 .4 million per mile. If $20 million is divided equally 

between eight districts that provides $2.5 million for each district, or less than two miles of paved roads 

per district. Suddenly $20 million doesn't sound like as much as it did. I 'm not aware of any road 

leading to a recreational site that is less than two miles long. 

We ask this committee for a unanimous DO PASS recommendation, we ask that the original amount of 

$40 million be reinstated, and we ask that the Special Roads Committee be given latitude in prioritizing 

road proj ects around the state without having to divvy the monies equally between districts. 

Your consideration is greatly appreciated. 

- ·:-·- -:.· · 



SB 222 1 
House Transportation Committee 
March 2 1 , 20 1 3  

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee:  

I 'm unable to attend the Thursday hearing on SB222 1 ,  but I would like to offer some insight into 
the bill. As a former County Commissioner, I cannot deliver this in person but I have discussed 
the bill with the present Commissioners and they are in full support of the effort to grant more 
funding for statewide recreational roads. 

When new residents, current residents and visitors come to our state, they want to enj oy its 
amenities. They purchase hunting or fishing licenses and head to the lake. Or they want to take 
their families to visit a historic site or a park. 

They need and deserve to have good roads to make their travels. And if we build them they will 
come and enjoy. Since the roads to Parshall Bay and Van Hook Bay were paved, traffic counts 
have surged. The same could be true for our hidden gems statewide. 

Recent Corps traffic counts (Oct. 1 ,  20 1 1 -Sept.30, 20 1 2) indicate that improved roads have a 
direct correlation to greater visitations. Listed below are visitation statistics of areas that I'm 
familiar with: 

PAVED ROADS 
Van Hook Park-------89,063 visitations 
New Town Marina--47,6 1 3  visitations 
Parshall Bay Park---4 1 ,854 visitations 

* ORA VEL/DIRT ROADS 
Mckenzie Bay--------------------23,43 1 
White Earth Bay----------------- 1 8, 73 7 
Indian Hills---------------------- 1 8, 1 3  2 
Pouch Point---------------------- 1 6, 7 4 1  

* These areas are more scenic than those with paved roads access and the fishing and hunting is 
just as good. 

WHY THE DIFFERENCE? ROADS, ROADS, ROADS. 

Please give SB222 1 a unanimous "DO PASS" 

Clarence Weltz 
Box 505, Parshall ND 5 8701 
898- 1 1 76 or 898-3 377 



Good M orning . . .  Mr. Chairman and members of the committe e .  
M y  name is B ill  M itzel . I publish D akota Country magazin e ,  a monthly hu nting, 

fishing and conservation magazine out of Bismarck. We have readers in all 50 
states and Canada. 

In my many decades of promoting the wise u se of our natu ral re source s ,  it's 
always been a challenge to make people aware of our wonderfu l  resources ,  but a 
much more d ifficu lt challenge to convince people of the need for conservation and 
enhancement of  these resources .  We are an agricu ltural stat e ,  which rightfu lly 
garners major attention. But when we realize that tourism spending was more 
than $3 billion in 2 0  1 1 , an increase of almost 2 4  percent since 2 0 0 8 ,  we can easily 
u n derstand that the valuable o u tdoor heritage we have here in North Dakota is of 
paramount importance.  

In dealing with sportsmen and women for several decades,  their maj or concern s 
not only involve where to hunt and fish, but how to get there . When Dakota 
Country was beginning 3 3  years ago , people traveled in a v ariety of  vehicles to 
get to their de stinations.  Boats were small by today's standard s ,  and campers 
were uncommon.  Today,  the vehicle , boat and RV bu siness i s  huge .  Sales of these 
expensive toys have increased dramatically, and you can 't go anywhere without 
seeing people attached to these huge investments.  

As a result,  sportsmen and women need good travel routes to get to their desired 
de stinations,  of which we have many. That said , it's easy to u nderstand that with 
more and improved travel routes,  people would make more u se of o u r  resources,  
which of course,  will  benefit our economy. We would love to leave these people with 
a good impres sion and have them return . 

I 'll tell you why that's importan t. For many people in this country , in fact,  for a 
huge maj o rity of people in this country, any contact with the o u tdoor world comes 
in the form of a backyard bird feeder. That's it.  For most American s ,  especially in 
metro America, to actually go camping or fi shing or hiking is rare . They have no 
contact with the outdoor world at all .  But that isn't the case in North Dakota and 
the Midwe st. We a.re an o u tdoor people.  I t 's our culture .  

There was a frequent national television commercial airing recen tly in which an 
adult male,  dressed head- to-toe in fly fishing gear, looks at the camera and says,  
"Before COPD , I u sed to take my son on a fi shing trip every year. " 

Wow . Once , every year? In N orth D akota and the Midwe st,  it's not uncommon 
for thousands of people to fish and hunt up to 1 00 times a year. T h u s ,  the need 
for good travel rou te s  are vital and important.  Such benefits will only increase the 
amount of  o u td oor activity in North D akota, of which there is more than anyone 
could possibly explore in a lifetime.  

People , when de scribing directions to  a fi shing or hunting hotspo t ,  often conclude 
that there 's a certain amount of gravel miles involved.  I t 's obviou sly important when 
people consider o u tdoor de stinations.  Poor road s  are a deterrent.  

I hope the committee will  work with North Dakota's o u tdoor community to 
improve road s whe1:e we can .  T ravel is a huge element in people's plans when they 
decide where to spend weekends and vacation s .  And tho se statistics I mentioned 
earlier abo u t  tourism prove how importan t that component is to our way of life . 

Thank you .  

Bill Mitzel 
Bismarck 
(70 1 )  2 5 5 - 3 0 3 1 
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Good Morning: 

I'm Michael Gunsch, Vice Chairman of the Friends of Lake Sakakawea, and it's my pleasure to share with you 

some additional thoughts on SB-222 1 from the Friends. First, we thank the Senate for their support and 

recognition of the statewide need for these funds. Second, we strongly encourage you to give SB-222 1 a DO 

PASS, and provided the following comments for your consideration. 

As professional engineer I understand the logistics and costs involved in constructing or reconstructing a 

roadway. Using an average cost of $ 1 .2 to $ 1 .4 Million per mile the $20 Million al location will complete 

roughly 1 4.3 to 1 6 .6 miles of roadway, or upwards of 20 miles using the 20% local funding. 

SB-222 1 was amended to allocate $2.5 Million to each of the eight NDDOT districts, which equates to roughly 

1 .75 to 2 mi les of roadway per district. Depending upon the local contribution, at most this would complete 

possibly 2.5 miles of roadway. While the amendment assures statewide distribution, and is well intended, it 

presents a concern. Reviewing proj ects around Lake Sakakawea, which is our interest, indicates the average 

project length for the top seven projects is nearly 6 miles. Reviewing all potential projects around the lake 

yields an average project length of 3 .5 to 4.5 miles. Our concern is this, if funding for an entire project is not 

available it is very difficult to start let alone complete a project. The net result is that the $20 Million could be 

allocated and not fully utilized, projects not started or incomplete due to inadequate funding. There is also the 

likelihood there will be more than one project in the same district, which gets funding - and the question that 

arises full, partial or not enough to start? 

So what are the options? One would be to leave the funding allocation to the Special Roads Fund Committee 

based on a review and ranking of the project requests. Second, you could increase the allocation to $40 

Million, which would increase the ability to complete 3 .5 to 4 miles in each NDDOT District. Third, would be 

to allow any unused funds in one district to be reallocated to other districts, if the approved applications do not 

fully utilize the funds in each district. The timing of the latter is very important if projects are to be completed 

this biennium. Again we encourage your support and a DO PASS recommendation for SB-222 1 .  

We and others recognize a significant need for improved access to recreational, tourist 
and historic sites across North Dakota. Recent economic growth has increased the use 
of these sites creating further deterioration of already poor access conditions. 



Testimony in support of Senate Bi l l  2221 

M a rch 21, 2013 

Randy Hatzenbuhler 

President, TRM F 

Chairman Ruby and members of the House Transportation Committee: 

My name is Randy Hatzenbuhler, President of the Theodore Roosevelt M edora Foundation and I a m  

h e re to testify for SB 2221. I a s k  for your support on S B  2221 which would provide needed funds for 

road improvement on scenic byways and recreation areas in North Dakota . 

These funds wil l  be of significant assistance to tourism entities across North Da kota as wel l  as residents 

who enjoy the great spaces of our state . They wi l l  have great impact on people trave l ing through the 

state as wel l  as those who choose North Dakota for their vacation destination. 

O ne of the more recognizable roads in North Dakota is the road just outside of Medora which winds past 

the entry to the Chateau de Mores H istoric Site and leads to the Medora M usical Amphitheatre and 

Pitchfork Fondue and historic Medora Cemetery. This road is over 20 years old and in need of repair. 

Passage of SB 2221 would provide the opportunity to apply for funds for this road repa ir. 

Thank you for your consideration. I would be happy to answer any questions. 

Respectfu l ly, 

Randy Hatzenbuhler, President 

Theodore Roosevelt M edora Foundation 



Proposed amendment to Senate Bi l l  2221 

On l i n e  18, page o n e, after the wo rd com m ittee.  I nse rt the fo l l owing :  

Any gra nt fu nds approved w h i c h  woul d  i n c l u d e  t raffic signage 

a ssociated with such roadway i mp rovement p rojects s ha l l  be i n  

a ccorda nce with a pp l icable  bid d i ng procedures a n d  t h e  traffic s ign 

p rocurement for such roa dway projects sha l l  be awa rded o n ly to 

p rivate sector ven d o rs.  

�' (  



SB222 1 - TRAFFIC COU NTS 
As req uested from the House Transportation Com mittee 

Representative Ruby and Members of the committee:  

This morning d uring the hearing, you req uested the North Dakota Department of Transportation 

( NDDOT) furnish the most recent traffic counts into the Van Hook Park, New Town M a rina, Parshall Bay 

Park, M cKenzie Bay, White Earth Bay, Indian Hi l ls, and Pouch Point recreation areas. listed below is the 

most recent traffic count for Van Hook, Indian Hi l ls, and Pouch, a long with the yea r  they were counted. 

Unfortunately the N DDOT o n ly counts the County Major Collector (CMC) System; therefore, we do not 

have data for the other locations.  As you look at these n u mbers, please note the date these counts 

were taken. Typica l ly we try to count recreation areas d u ring the summer; however, we had road 

construction scheduled for Highway 23 near  Van Hook so we got out  early and took the counts. 

Van Hook 

Indian H i l ls 

Pouch Point 

New Town M a rina 

Parsha l l  Bay Park 

McKe nzie Bay 

White Earth Bay 

AADT 
1,020 
65 
985 
No Count 

N o  Count 

N o  Count 

N o  Count 

Date 
2/23/2012 
7/24/2012 
6/26/2012 

Count was taken 1.6 miles north of the park 

Count was taken just off Hwy 1804 
Count was taken 12 m iles north of boat ram p  

I hope this information i s  helpful.  Should you need a ny add itional  information you can contact m e  at: 

Steve Salwei, P .E .  

Transportation Programs Director 

North Dakota Department of Transportation 

608 East Boulevard Avenue 

Bismarck N O  58505-0700 
(701) 328-3689 
SSALWEI@N D.GOV 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2221 

Page 1 , l ine 3,  remove "amend and reenact section 24-02-37.2 of' 

Page 1 ,  l ine 4, replace "the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the special road committee" 
with "declare an emergency" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 8, remove "on" 

Page 1 ,  line 9, replace "July 1 ,  201 3" with "during the period beginning with the effective date of 
this Act and ending June 30, 2015" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 5, remove "biennium beginning July 1 ," 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 6, replace "201 3," with "period beginning with the effective date of this Act" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 2 1 , remove "The special" 

Page 1 ,  remove l ines 22 through 24 

Page 2, replace l ines 1 through 22 with : 

"SECTION 3. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency 
measure." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 1 3. 0662.03001 
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